DETROIT BOARD OF POLICE COMMISSIONERS REGULAR MEETING THURSDAY, OCTOBER 20, 2016 3:00 PM DETROIT PUBLIC SAFETY HEADQUARTERS 1301 THIRD AVENUE

DETROIT, MICHIGAN 48226



10/24/2016 COMMISSIONERS: RICHARD SHELBY, Commissioner (Dist. 1) BISHOP EDGAR VANN, Commissioner (Dist. 2) REGINALD CRAWFORD, Commissioner (Dist. 3) WILLIE BELL, Chairperson (Dist. 4) LISA CARTER, Chairperson (Dist. 6) RICARDO R. MOORE, Commissioner (Dist. 7) DEREK SANDERS, Commissioner EVA GARZA DEWAELSCHE, Commissioner ELIZABETH BROOKS, Commissioner



1	
2	
3	
4	
5	
6	
7	
8	
9	
10	REPRESENTING THE CHIEF OF POLICE'S OFFICE:
11	ASSISTANT CHIEF JAMES WHITE
12	
13	
14	
15	
16	
17	
18	
19	
20	
21	
22	
23	
24	
25	



1 Detroit, Michigan 2 October 20, 2016 3 About 3:00 p.m. 4 COMMISSIONER BELL: Good afternoon. 5 ALL: Good afternoon. 6 7 COMMISSIONER BELL: And welcome to the 8 weekly afternoon meeting of the Board of the Police 9 Commission. I am Willie Bell your chair from District 10 4. We going to start the process by having an opening prayer by very own Bishop Edgar Vann. Commissioner. 11 (Invocation given.) 12 13 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you, Commissioner Vann. And we're going to start instruction of the Board 14 of Police Commission to my far left with commissioner. 15 COMMISSIONER SHELBY: Commissioner Richard 16 17 Shelby, District 1. 18 COMMISSIONER VANN: Commissioner Edgar Vann, District 2. 19 20 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Commissioner 21 Reginald Crawford District 3. 22 COMMISSIONER MOORE: Commissioner Ricardo Moore, District 7, vice chairman. 23 COMMISSIONER CARTER: Commissioner Lisa 24 Carter, District . 25



10/	24/	20	16
-----	-----	----	----

COMMISSIONER BROOKS: Commissioner Elizabeth
 Brooks, appointed.

3 COMMISSIONER SANDERS: Commissioner Derek4 Sanders appointed.

5 COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: Commissioner Eva
6 Garza Dewaelsche, appointed.

7 COMMISSIONER BELL: And I want to say that 8 all the appointed commissioners represent the entire 9 city of Detroit and perhaps we need to say in terms at 10 large, you know, because they represent the city of 11 Detroit and we represent the district but also the city 12 of Detroit would that be appropriate? I'm just going to 13 thank all of you for their service regardless how they 14 they come here as appointed, elected. We are one body 15 of 11 person board to share the interest of public 16 safety in the city of Detroit and I thank you for 17 showing up this afternoon. As we move forward I'm going 18 to ask the commissioners approval of the agenda for this 19 afternoon meeting.

20 COMMISSIONER VANN: Move the adoption, Mr.21 Chair.

22 COMMISSIONER MOORE: Support.

23 COMMISSIONER BELL: It's been properly moved24 and supported. Discussion? Those in favor aye.

25 ALL: Aye.

HANSON RENAISSANCE COURT REPORTERS & VIDEO 313-567-8100

1 COMMISSIONER BELL: Those opposed? Motion 2 Approval of the minutes from October the 13th, carried. 2016 the next item of business. 3 4 COMMISSIONER MOORE: So moved. 5 COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: Mr. Chair -- oh. COMMISSIONER BELL: Discussion? 6 7 COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: Yes, correction. 8 I believe it's a correction in the first paragraph where 9 it indicates that Commissioner Dewaelsche inquired about 10 the efficacy of the department bringing to the board a permanent policy on awarding fallen officers ceremonial 11 12 ranks following their death. My inquiry was adjustments 13 in pay or benefits to surviving families. So I want it 14 to be very clear that that's what I was inquiring about 15 not the ceremonial rank itself but an adjustment in pay and benefits for officers. 16 17 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you, Commissioner. 18 So let the record be clarified with that stipulation. 19 Been properly moved and second. Any other further 20 discussion on the minutes? Those this favor aye. 21 ALL: Aye. 22 COMMISSIONER BELL: Those opposed? Motion carried. At this time I have a brief statement to make 23 24 in terms of my only remark but perhaps before I do that 25 I would like to ask Mr. Hicks to introduce the board



1 staff. 2 MR. HICKS: Sure, Mr. Chair, just for the 3 record you also have a guorum. 4 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you, sir. 5 MR. HICKS: We have two excused absences Commissioner Burton and Commissioner Mallett. 6 7 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you, sir. 8 MR. HICKS: In connection with the staff 9 who's here today obviously Robert Brown who is no doubt 10 working coming in this direction here. We have Gail 11 Oxendine who is the head of the HR bureau. And we also 12 have media services providing the taping tonight. We 13 have Caitlyn Mancini who is also doing the court reporting tonight. And officer or Sergeant Quinn who is 14 15 handling recording for the night and then not that I 16 overlooked Chief Investigator Drake but Drake normally 17 follows at the end and also introduces other people on her staff. 18 19 CHIEF INVESTIGATOR DRAKE: Today with me is 20 Senior Investigator Charlotte Jones. 21 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you. At this time 22 before I read my statement perhaps we need to just get 23 the formality introduction out of the way. We know who

24 all in the room. To my far left is Assistant Chief 25 James White sitting in for Chief Craig and if you want



1 to introduce any other staff members at this time or DPD 2 family that would be okay. 3 ASSISTANT CHIEF WHITE: I can only see past 4 the first row. We've got Deputy Chief Hall neighborhood 5 police. Deputy Chief LeValley with the detective's 6 bureau. Commander Sims, internal affairs. Captain Petty, downtown services. And anybody I miss just stand 7 8 up and introduce yourself. I see D.C. 9 COMMANDER WILLIAMS: Commander Williams 7th 10 precinct. 11 COMMANDER BETTISON: Commander Bettison, chief neighborhood liaison. 12 13 CAPTAIN CHAMBERS: Captain Michael Chambers, internal control. 14 15 CAPTAIN BOLINKSI: Capt. Ken Bolinski, task 16 force administration. 17 CAPTAIN COCKS: Captain Rodney Cocks, major 18 crimes. 19 CAPTAIN MILES: Captain miles, homicide. 20 COMMANDER WILSON: Ronald Wilson, Commander, 21 major crimes. Lieutenant Franklin Hayes, special victims unit. 22 23 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you to Assistant 24 Chief White and all the others who in attendance that 25 are non-DPD I want to thank you for coming out for our

> HANSON RENAISSANCE COURT REPORTERS & VIDEO COURT REPORTERS & VIDEO 313-567-8100

afternoon meeting. We will move forward and have a statement in reference to the towing involving six officers suspended. On Tuesday night many of us saw a local news broadcast indicating that six Detroit police officers was suspended for bribes in connection with with the illegal towing of cars.

7 We would all -- we were also told in this 8 broadcast that this was part of an ongoing FBI 9 investigation. Media task was verified of suspension 10 information as we did Wednesday as an oversight board. 11 We have requested information as to the reason 12 supporting the suspension. This information can be 13 readily obtained from the chief of police. As an 14 oversight board we do not have access to investigative 15 material from the FBI insofar as an internal department 16 investigation reported to be underway by the department 17 internal affairs section we are eager as others to 18 receive the results of their investigation.

19 The chief is reported to have said more 20 officers could be suspended. We are asking for many of 21 the detail in this matter as soon as it can be made 22 available pursuant to any internal investigation by the 23 department. Because of our concerns and the media 24 concern on this report, we are asking that reasonable 25 information be shared periodically and not wait till the



1 conclusion of the investigation. Periodic sharing of 2 reasonable information would help us address issues of public accountability and transparency while protecting 3 4 the individual rights of members of the department. 5 Officers accused have access to a full range of 6 protection and defenses as you can see from the media 7 involvement and reaction from one of our police units. Namely the DP08. 8

9 In recent past the commissioner has begun a 10 review of several gaps in the police towing rules. We have constructed on Ad hoc committee of the board to 11 12 discuss several of these gaps with the mayor and the 13 chief. While we do not have the specific information 14 surrounding that allegation against those six officers, 15 we hope to continue and examine our rules to the extent 16 that the alleged violation help us create stronger and 17 better rules. I say strong and better rules. We will 18 do so.

Finally, as we have received several calls from the media on this matter we have reported out proposed a copy of the towing rules the application process and the current list of authorized towing company on our city website that the Board of Police Commission paid. That is the extent of our formal statement. There might be other commission that might



1 want to weigh in at some point in time but I think that 2 time will probably within the realms of when Assistant Chief White give us his report and respond perhaps he 3 4 might cover some of the issues that we are dealing with 5 so as we move forward. 6 COMMISSIONER MOORE: Mr. Chair. 7 COMMISSIONER BELL: Yes, sir. 8 COMMISSIONER MOORE: Can I please read the 9 website so that citizens can know what you were 10 referencing in that statement. 11 COMMISSIONER BELL: Yes, sir. 12 COMMISSIONER MOORE: W-W-W dot Detroit M-I 13 dot gov back slash government back slash Detroit police 14 commissioner hyphen meetings. 15 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you, sir. The next item of business would be Assistant Chief White. 16 17 ASSISTANT CHIEF WHITE: Good afternoon, 18 board. So as you're aware a number of issues particularly with towing as we've all seen in the media 19 20 these past few days and I'm going to tell you that the 21 chief as well as the entire executive team are troubled 22 by the information that we've learned recently. As 23 you've indicated in your statement this is an active 24 federal investigation and I will tell you there's a 25 bifurcated investigation where the police department is

> HANSON RENAISSANCE COURT REPORTERS & VIDEO 313-567-8100

10/24/2016

Page 12

1 also conducting an investigation via internal affairs. 2 There are a number of different issues in this investigation that I am not at liberty to discuss at 3 this point. Once that information is made available we 4 5 will do the appropriate briefing for the board. We've 6 also had some preliminary discussions with D.C. 7 Washington about having a briefing with the board with 8 regards to what we can release right now. There's some 9 sensitive information in the federal investigation that 10 I'm not at liberty to even know so they're communicating 11 directly with the people they need to communicate with 12 regard to this investigation.

13 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you, Assistant 14 Chief White. Commissioner, if you want to weigh in and 15 respect the process as he outlined it in terms he cannot 16 go into details but there might be forecoming (sic) 17 briefing of the board so as we move forward so 18 Commissioner Crawford.

19 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Yes, sir, through the 20 chair. Yes, sir, Chief I respect the integrity of that 21 investigation and I welcome the actions of Chief Craig 22 to suspend the six officers but the question I have is 23 more or less framed for the commission if the chief can 24 suspend six officers, and the federal government can 25 suspend the blight dealing with the federal



investigation for a couple months it occurred back in
 August, then why can't we as a commission suspend the
 towers who were part of this investigation.

I've reviewed the tow rules and as a matter 4 5 of fact this was a presentation back in April, well, 6 sometime in late April and we all received a copy of the 7 tow rules from then attorney Linda Bernard who was our 8 attorney at the time. Also, too, this is actual posting 9 from the legal news where the tow rules were one might 10 say amended Tuesday, April 21st, 2010 and of course that 11 was the prior commission.

12 As I stated before we've had complaints on 13 the record who individuals who came before us 14 complaining about the towing and it was one individual 15 who was a paid lobbyist from one of the tow companies 16 that wanted us to suspend towing and I told him at that time that we couldn't do it and we wouldn't do that and 17 18 we had no legal standing to do that but now that this 19 information is public; and I stated before on the record 20 I'm never one who's been in toe or would be in toe with 21 the towers -- no pun intended there -- but I just 22 question to maybe perhaps we need to act with all due 23 speed in terms of whatever we need to do in terms of 24 researching and temporary suspend the towers who are 25 part of this investigation.



1	And it states here and if you read the tow
2	rules too that the city may immediately suspend a towing
3	permit if there's any if there's fraud or criminal
4	conduct. Now of course no one's been convicted of any
5	fraud or criminal conduct. Terminated is the word so I
6	just question the fact that it shouldn't be business as
7	usual or alleged corruption as usual in the city. This
8	is a different day, a different commission, different
9	administration, different police chief, and a different
10	mayor so.

11 COMMISSIONER BELL: Well I'd like to respond Commissioner Craword, there's no towing company named; 12 13 there's no formal allegations involving exactly what has transpired so we should not be entertaining dialogue 14 15 about suspending any towing companies. Nothing come before us at this time so I just want to respond to that 16 17 manner. As we go forward if there's something of 18 substance, then we would take the proper action as a board in terms of fact finding but right now there's 19 20 nothing for us to act on as far as the towing companies 21 itself but chief responded to the issue dealing with the officers and I think we support that suspension based on 22 23 the merits that they have brought forth in terms of this 24 investigation in conjunction with the FBI. We knew that 25 this investigation was underway quite some time ago so



1	I'm pleased that it's somewhat now out there formally so
2	as we go forward we are going to respect the process.
3	COMMISSIONER MOORE: Through the chair.
4	COMMISSIONER BELL: Yes, sir.
5	COMMANDER CRAWFORD: Go ahead.
6	COMMISSIONER MOORE: Assistant Chief just a
7	point of clarification. You mentioned that the FBI was
8	conducting their investigation and that DPD was
9	conducting an investigation as well?
10	ASSISTANT CHIEF WHITE: That's correct.
11	COMMISSIONER MOORE: Will DPD wait for the
12	federal investigation before they release their details
13	or will they be independent in releasing before the
14	feds?
15	ASSISTANT CHIEF WHITE: I don't know at this
16	time. I'll have to be briefed by the chief as to how
17	they're going to release the information with regard to
18	that investigation. I will tell you that there are
19	facets of both investigations that overlap so I don't
20	know the answer to that.
21	COMMISSIONER MOORE: And last question who's
22	the point of contact for the DPD with the feds?
23	ASSISTANT CHIEF WHITE: I'm sorry?
24	COMMISSIONER MOORE: Who's the point of
25	contact for DPD for the feds?

HANSON RENAISSANCE COURT REPORTERS & VIDEO 313-567-8100

1	ASSISTANT CHIEF WHITE: For DPD would be
2	Commander Sims.
3	COMMISSIONER MOORE: Okay thank you.
4	COMMISSIONER BELL: Any other questions?
5	COMMISSIONER VANN: Mr. Chair.
6	COMMISSIONER BELL: Yes, sir.
7	COMMISSIONER VANN: I just want to say that
8	I believe that we are proceeding with this appropriately
9	as a commission and I appreciate the statement that
10	you've just given and, you know, this is a palinal
11	problem we know within the department in terms of
12	towing. I can remember my first stint on the commission
13	with Commissioner Dewaelsche. We had similar issues.
14	So this is a longstanding problem and I'm very happy to
15	see that we're coming to a place where we can finally
16	take care of the problem and fix the problem once and
17	for all. And I just want to make sure that the
18	commission is apprised as you say of the information as
19	it unfolds. We're not asking for proprietary
20	information that we're not supposed to have but we
21	certainly do want the information necessary so that we
22	can fulfill our fiduciary responsibility in terms of
23	being a policy making body. So as we go forward we know
24	that there are going to be policies that are going to be
25	needed; there are going to be procedures that are going

HANSON RENAISSANCE COURT REPORTERS & VIDEO ANSON REPORTERS & VIDEO

1 to have to be discussed and addressed and that's what 2 this commission will do at the proper time. 3 COMMISSIONER BELL: Commissioner, your 4 comments? Any other comments? 5 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Through the chair. 6 Yes, sir, in reference to Mr. Chairman in what you stated in terms of the information and you're absolutely 7 8 correct because we don't even have the names of any 9 tows. As a matter of fact I think we requested from the 10 department a couple months back a list of all the 11 towers. COMMISSIONER BELL: We have that list. 12 Tt's 13 posted on the website. COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: 14 Now? 15 COMMISSIONER BELL: We have always once we 16 went through the contract this summer we approved all 17 the tows. It's been listed. It's in your information 18 packet but if not, we will make sure you receive it but 19 that was the process of 20 some towing companies. We 20 have that information and we're now sharing it on our 21 website. 22 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Okay I didn't look at the website today. But also too the rules of policy 23 24 it may be something as we in the future do a bit more 25 research and reading. It may need to be -- may need an



10/24/2016

Page 18

1	amendment of such but it goes beyond rules and policy;
2	it's about those who may violate or break the rules.
3	You can have the tightest policy in the world but if
4	you're going to have individuals who allegedly violate
5	the rules of the policy, then that's the issue here.
6	COMMISSIONER BELL: That's correct.
7	COMMISSIONER MOORE: Mr. Chair.
8	COMMISSIONER BELL: Yes, sir.
9	COMMISSIONER MOORE: Through the chair. I
10	just want to echo the same thing that Commissioner
11	Crawford just said. We can have all the rules in the
12	world but if you have a person that's hellbent on
13	breaking those rules, they're going to break the rules.
14	So I do commend you for your statement, Commissioner
15	Crawford.
16	ASSISTANT CHIEF WHITE: If I may through the
17	chair certainly any rule, any violation of any rule is
18	responsibility of the management team to ensure that the
19	rules of the organization are followed so I'm just
20	asking that the board allows this process to play out.
21	We will continue to be transparent and hold people
22	responsible and accountable for their actions whatever
23	their actions may be. This is a complex investigation
24	and certainly it's, you know, with the media attention
25	to this investigation it's getting a lot of light but it

1 won't be dealt with any differently because the light is 2 shining brightly on it; we're going to handle it as a 3 misconduct investigation and if we an officer who has broken the law, they will be held accountable. I mean, 4 5 that's the bottom line and I think the chief has proven 6 that he is transparent and that, you know, the 7 management team is committed to correcting any wrongs 8 that's in the department.

9 Also so I appreciate the conversation about 10 it being a palinal issues with regards to towing but I want to be very clear that I don't think it's a issue, a 11 12 palinal issue of misconduct in regards to our officers. 13 We have a number of officers, you know, over 2,000 that 14 every day, day in and day out, you know, do what's 15 required to be done and go above and beyond and have 16 impeccable work records. Unfortunately, this situation 17 takes away or puts a shadow over those officers that, 18 you know, suit up day in and day out and do this job the 19 right so let's let the process play out. If these 20 officers are in fact guilty, I assure you that they will 21 be held accountable and you'll be hearing from the chief 22 very quickly as to what his recommendations are with regards to their discipline. 23

COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you, AssistantChief White. And I have confidence in the process.



1	COMMISSIONER CARTER: I just have a quick
2	question to Assistant Chief White. For residents who
3	feel like they may have been a part or victim of the
4	process is there somewhere some person that that they
5	should report to or just go into a precinct or how
6	should they bring forth their information?
7	ASSISTANT CHIEF WHITE: They can bring forth
8	that information a number of ways. One way would be to
9	contact internal affairs. Contact the office of the
10	chief investigator. Go to any precinct and make a
11	report. But certainly you can start with contacting
12	internal affairs and I'll get a number for you in
13	regards to that. 596-2447.
14	COMMISSIONER CARTER: Okay thank you.
15	COMMISSIONER BELL: Mr. Hicks.
16	MR. HICKS: Commissioner, I just wanted to
17	also indicate that in spite of the information and the
18	pending investigations what the charge for this
19	commission was to look at the rules and to identify gaps
20	in the rules and so we're really, aside from those
21	criminal-based inquires, we're doing a review and that
22	was the basis in which we formed the Ad hoc committee.
23	We're putting together a list of concerns in which we
24	hope to share or we're almost at the point where we can
25	share them with the chief's office through the liaison

HANSON RENAISSANCE COURT REPORTERS & VIDEO ANSON REPORTERS & VIDEO

1 that the chief has identified.

2 And our view in that regard is really 3 looking at gaps because even in the statements earlier that we actually authorized the entire list we cannot 4 5 find evidence in the record that we actually authorized the entire list. And this is one of the areas where the 6 gaps exist so there are a few of those things which 7 8 we're looking at. It has nothing to do with the 9 investigations that are taking place; they are normal 10 and routine kind of rules tightening we need to do 11 anyway. 12 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you for that 13 clarification Mr. Hicks. Any other comments? 14 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: One last question 15 Assistant Chief are we still utilizing those same tow 16 companies today, the department; those tow companies are 17 still in rotation actively today and we are continuing 18 or the department's continuing to call and utilize the 19 ones that are under investigation? 20 ASSISTANT CHIEF WHITE: So when you define 21 it as those tow companies the ones that have been 22 identified in the investigation I am not familiar with 23 which specific tow companies are involved. As I 24 indicated this is a classified investigation and there's 25 a need to know briefing and they didn't need to tell me



1 at that point. So once these tow companies are 2 identified as a catalyst for this problem, we will make the appropriate recommendation to the board that they be 3 suspended but at this point that would be premature. 4 5 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Okay thank you, sir. COMMISSIONER BELL: Commissioner Moore. 6 7 COMMISSIONER MOORE: Yeah, just a point of 8 clarification so we're saying that there is more than 9 one tow company involved? 10 ASSISTANT CHIEF WHITE: Well see now we're spitting hairs. No, I mean, I'm not going to continue 11 12 to plant seeds in the investigation. But it is an 13 active investigation and there's more to come and, you 14 know, I'm not trying to evade the question but this is a 15 very complex investigation and there will be more information as it unfolds over the next few weeks. 16 17 COMMISSIONER MOORE: Thank you, Chief. 18 COMMISSIONER BELL: As Assistant Chief 19 stated he's not involved with the process so we respect 20 and we are not involved in the process. So let's move 21 on to the chief's summary crime stat report in terms of 22 what he might want to cover at this point. 23 ASSISTANT CHIEF WHITE: Again good afternoon 24 board through the chair. We do have good news to report on the crime front. We continue to experience a 25



decrease in crime by way of very, very good work, hard working men and women of the Detroit Police Department. The aggravated assaults are down 4 percent. Our nonfatal shootings are down 10 percent. Our robberies are down 10 percent our carjackings are down 10 percent. Those are just numbers but to us, you know, they represent people.

8 For example, the reduction in the nonfatal 9 shootings means for us that 87 people, 87 less people 10 were shot this year than at the same time last year so 11 we have 87 less victims of a shooting in Detroit. So 12 that's good work. We do have a slight bump in homicides 13 with regards to the numbers; we have a 4 percent 14 increase in homicides. Homicide team is doing very, 15 very good work. There are a number of warrants that 16 have been prepared and sent over and we're waiting 17 disposition and those warrants. And I'm sure that those 18 numbers will come in line but certainly we're not 19 throwing our shoulders out patting ourselves on the 20 back. These numbers do not represent the numbers that 21 we want to have in the city so we're all still working 22 very hard to bring down crime in the city of Detroit. 23 Also, more good news is I'm sure all of us 24 heard today about the three year old that was missing. 25 She has been recovered healthy in a vacant house in the



1 city of Detroit and the perpetrator has been arrested. 2 The mayor has been working very hard; D.C. LeValley, Deputy Chief Fitzgerald, and Deputy Chief Hall teams 3 have all been out there and working very hard to recover 4 5 this child and we certainly have so we're very, very 6 happy about that; that we don't have a negative report and the suspect is in custody. We have a, when we're 7 8 ready for it, but we have a presentation from Deputy 9 Chief LeValley from the detective bureau so when you're 10 read for that we can roll that. 11 COMMISSIONER BELL: We are ready if you're 12 ready. 13 ASSISTANT CHIEF WHITE: I am ready. 14 DEPUTY CHIEF LEVALLEY: Good afternoon, 15 board, Chief White, and visors I am Deputy Chief David 16 LeValley, detective bureau for the Detroit Police 17 Department. I would ask that the command staff from the It's two 18 detective bureau step forward and join me. 19 fold: One so that you can put a name with a face when I 20 introduce them and secondly if any of you have tough 21 questions I have someone to pass them to. I'll first introduce Commander Marlon Wilson. Commander Wilson 22 oversees the major crimes and organized crime divisions 23 24 of the bureau. Captain Rodney Cox oversees special 25 victims unit. Captain Elaine Miles oversees homicide,



10	/24	/2	016
----	-----	----	-----

and Captain Ken Balinski oversees task force
 administration and Lieutenant Franklin Hayes back here
 he's a new lieutenant and joined us at SVU.

I'm going to move through this. If there's any questions, anybody that wants to stop me in between; there's a lot of material here, pretty large bureau within the department. I passed out an order chart in beginning in case you wanted to see it or get a visual as to where the units belong.

10 Mission of the detective bureau. It's our 11 mission to ensure the public's trust and confidence in 12 the Detroit Police Department though the conducting of 13 impartial and thorough investigation into allegations of criminality. First unit I'll talk about is homicide. 14 15 Homicide falls under major crimes. They respond to and 16 investigate homicides within the city of Detroit. In 17 addition to homicide scenes they also respond to and 18 investigative infant deaths, suicides, any unnatural 19 deaths such as drug overdoses.

20 So they actually in addition to our homicide 21 numbers they have a lot more scenes that they have to 22 process, and that they have to manage in addition to the 23 homicide numbers. They consist of six squads that are 24 broken down. Each squad has two precincts. There's 25 also a task force within homicide that handles a lot of



10/24/2016

Page 26

our multi-victim, juvenile homicide cases. 1 That's a 2 joint task force that they work together with MSP and then we also have a cold case within homicide. Fatal 3 squads that's part of homicide as well and fatal squad 4 handles all of the critical and fatal car accident. 5 They're assigned to homicide. Head quarter 6 7 surveillance. Surveillance team that we utilize to 8 apprehend all of our homicide suspects whether we obtain 9 a warrant or we establish probable cause for their 10 arrest; they're a very successful unit. Right now we 11 have single digit homicide suggests that are at large that we've identified so they're very good at getting 12 13 them into custody quickly.

14 Missing persons unit. We have a sergeant at 15 missing persons that our liaison works with the precinct 16 detectives. A lot of our cold missing person cases are 17 investigated by this sergeant. Sometimes we get people 18 that are found that are either in a state of discomp... 19 decomposition, yeah, sorry. I couldn't think of that 20 word. So she works very hard to try to identify them 21 and works with families to get DNA samples from parents, 22 from siblings and identify unidentified people.

23 Some of the community partnerships through 24 homicide one of them is Mothers of Murdered Children. 25 They're our liaison between families of new homicide



victims and the department and they work a lot with the detectives because they're able to relate a lot better to how some of the families are dealing with the loss of a loved one.

5 Another partnership is crime stoppers. We 6 have crime stopper individuals that are embedded in 7 homicide and they help to coordinate press conferences, 8 to set up flyers, take in tips, process that information 9 for us so that people can make anonymous tips.

10 Our second is special victims unit that 11 consists first of domestic violence and they -- this unit handles cases where there's married relationship, 12 13 formally or currently residing together, or they have a 14 child in common so dating relationships where they don't 15 live together those are handled by precinct detectives 16 but these here are handled by the domestic violence 17 unit. They actually process near 10,000 forms a year on the cases that come in for domestic violence. 18

19 And the next area is sex crimes. Sex crimes 20 unit they have four squads. One is the unknown squad so 21 this would be your rapist out on the street that we have 22 no identification on the person at the time. The other second squad is a known squad; this would be more of 23 24 like a date rape situation where we know who the suspect 25 is up front. There's a child squad where the child is a



1 victim. And SAK squad and that's something that we 2 recently started collaboration with the prosecutor's office to process and work all of the cold cases that 3 4 came up from sex assault kits that have been processed 5 over the last few years because we're now getting a lot 6 of those DNA hits back so we have a team of detectives there working with the prosecutor's office to type those 7 8 warrants and start getting individuals identified or 9 into custody.

10 Third unit there is child abuse. Child abuse responds to and investigates allegations of child 11 12 abuse on anybody that's under the age of 16. We do get 13 a lot of cases that come in either through traditional 14 reporting methods or through schools, child protective 15 services so anytime we have a teacher that reports to 16 CPS that they've observed injuries on a child one of 17 their students that they can't explain, this unit 18 investigates all that as well.

19 And then last part of SVU is arson. Thev 20 took out in '15 up until that point arson only consisted 21 of fire investigators so they were firefighters who had 22 been trained in the police academy to investigate 23 In 2015 we entered into an agreement with the arsons. 24 fire department where we added 8 police detectives to 25 that squad and they work here, they investigate all



suspicious fires in the city. And they've been very
 successful so far in typing a lot of arrest warrants and
 getting people into custody for arsons.

Next area is major violators. This falls
under the organized crime part of the detective bureau.
Major violators consists of first the major violator
section which has four raid crews. They do a lot of
work raiding in the city. And they have conspiracy
crews that work large scale drug dealers and they work
in conjunction with the DEA a lot.

11 The second part is prisoner processing unit. 12 The prisoner processing they handle all of the arrests 13 for narcotics city wide regardless of who makes the 14 arrest so precinct officers on patrol make a narcotic 15 arrest, it's processed by the prisoner processing unit 16 of major violators.

17 The third piece of that is vice. Vice has a 18 crew that handles prostitution, obscenity, illegal 19 liquor activity and illegal gambling throughout the 20 city; they do inspections on bars, some gas stations, topless establishments, as well as street enforcement. 21 22 So they'll do offer to engage operations where they do reverse stings I guess you would call it with taking 23 24 Johns into custody.

25

The next area there is liquor license so



10/24/2016

Page 30

1 major violators are responsible for all applications of 2 liquor licenses and requests for bar permits and 3 inspections on current licenses when there appears to be 4 any indication that it was obtained fraudulently.

5 And then the last part of major violators is 6 a Forfeiture Unit. And so forfeiture they process for the department all narcotic proceeds that we seize. 7 8 There's a process that they go with the courts that if 9 somebody wants to appeal a seizure we make. Most of the 10 seizures that we make involve cash, cars, or sometimes jewelry. If there's an indication that the person 11 12 obtained those items through the sale of narcotics, then 13 we're able to seize that and they can post a bond, have 14 a court hearing and the judge will make a determination whether or not they actually should have that stuff 15 16 returned to them or we keep it.

17 They also process nuisance abatements so 18 some of our push-off operations that we do where people 19 come to a location to buy drugs we will seize their 20 vehicles as a nuisance to the neighborhood, as well as 21 off to engage in prostitution activity. Those vehicles 22 are seized and then there's again a bond process and a court hearing that they go through to make a 23 24 determination whether or not that property should go 25 back to the person or become city property.



1	Next area is Task Force Administration so
2	we're this group consists of a number of smaller task
3	forces or I say smaller we have a contingent of DPD
4	officers on each of these task forces that pair up
5	usually with federal partners to conduct different
6	organized crime operations and investigations. They do
7	a lot of federal indictments on various gangs, drug
8	groups. And it consists of the violent gang task force
9	which we partnered with the FBI. The Firearms
10	Investigative Team where we partner with ATF. Joint
11	Terrorism Task Force also an FBI task force. The
12	Detroit Fugitive Apprehension Team which is U.S.
13	Marshals. Our partnership on that task force allows us
14	to pursue wanted individuals basically worldwide. We
15	can either dispatch our people through this task force
16	to apprehend somebody if we get a lead if they're on the
17	other side of the state in the UP; we've sent people to
18	New York to make arrests. Sometimes we send a lead to
19	some of those other agencies if we find out that a
20	wanted felon from Detroit is out of state.
21	The General Assignment Unit they investigate
22	and handle dumping, electric theft, scrapping, and
23	graffiti complaints. Fugitive Recovery Unit they serve

felony warrants within the city of Detroit so that's a 24 team that handles most of our nonfatal shooting warrants 25



1 and a lot of our armed robbery warrants. Cyber crimes 2 team this is a fairly new unit to the department 3 consists of six, two sergeants and four individuals and 4 so they are -- they've been doing a lot of work with phones, with computers, some internet crimes. 5 They are the unit that handled the recent Facebook threats cases 6 7 that are being charged with the Attorney General's 8 Office and the U.S Attorney's Office. So there as they 9 get some more training they'll expand the cyber crime 10 and maybe identity theft type cases that they'll be able 11 to work on. And last part of the Task Force Administration is commercial auto theft and they handle 12 13 all organized vehicle theft rings, chop shops, all 14 carjacking cases in the city and insurance fraud cases. 15 Next we have crime scene service; it's also 16 part of the major crimes and organized crime and 17 property section so crime scene services consists of 18 evidence technicians. So we have a staff that is sworn 19 and civilian; they work 24 hours a day, 7 days a week 20 and they go to all major crime scenes or any other crime 21 scene where if we get a request from detectives that 22 they need to have something processed, they go out, collect, preserve evidence, they lift finger prints, 23 24 they'll take blood samples, recover casings, bullets, 25 evidence from crime scenes, photographs. This year



1 they've processed or responded to 3,774 scenes and work 2 requests.

3 Next piece of crime scene services is latent 4 prints and AFIS Unit. So they identify and classify lifting prints from crime scenes. When evidence techs 5 6 go out they lift a print from a car, they send it over to latent prints, latent prints will classify it and try 7 8 to make a determination as to who the person is; if we 9 have their fingerprints on file here. If not, they 10 enter it into AFIS and that's a nationwide database of 11 fingerprints.

12 The last part of that is property control 13 and they're responsible for securing and storing all 14 evidence in DPD and this year they've handled or moved, processed 450,000 pieces of evidence. And that's housed 15 16 here in this building. They do an excellent job of 17 every day evidence coming in, going out, drugs, money, 18 guns. Any time officers need something for court they 19 come to the property control, they check it out, bring 20 it back when they're done. They keep an accountability 21 of who has pieces checked out. And they're also 22 responsible for the turning over property that's being released to citizens, which we do here at this building 23 24 Monday through Friday.

25

Next Investigative Operations Control Desk



1 and Response team. So we maintain a control desk at 2 Investigative Operations that takes notifications on all major crime scenes and all arrests city wide and they're 3 4 like the quarterback of managing the people that come 5 in, the scenes, where the response teams need to go to, 6 and that's a 24/7 operation. And when we talk about 7 response teams, we have over the last few years we in 8 our effort to be -- to streamline some of the processes that we had in place we've eliminated some of the 9 10 standby units that are working at night. We just didn't 11 find that it was very efficient to have whole teams of 12 people sitting around at night from each individual unit 13 within the detective bureau waiting for a crime scene to 14 occur.

15 In the likelihood of them actually being 16 able to follow up and go knock on doors in the middle of 17 the night is not high so what we did is we established 18 response teams that consist of teams of two detectives 19 each and they work covering hours from 7 p.m. to 8 a.m. 20 so when a call comes in and we've had a crime that 21 occurred at night, the control desk dispatches a 22 response team and then response team goes out and begins 23 to process a scene. If it's one that they can handle 24 through themselves, they do. It it's not, if it's 25 homicide scene, they'll go out and get started, secure



10/24/2016

Page 35

1 the area, and then we call the homicide detectives. And 2 the last piece of investigative operations and this is the part that works in my office that we audit all 3 4 investigate commands throughout the city, track 5 warrants, ensure a lot of the issues that were brought 6 out through a consent judgment years ago that we 7 continue to maintain that level of scrutiny that we had 8 in place then. We haven't given up on any of that. 9 Next part records management. So we 10 maintain and disseminate department records. There's a 11 customer service deck that is normally housed at the 3rd 12 precinct we just temporarily moved it to the 4th 13 precinct on 4th street because of some construction 14 that's taking place at the 3rd precinct but at that 15 customer service desk we provide crime reports to the 16 citizens, to other agencies, insurance companies, 17 anybody that comes in and wants to buy a crime report we 18 sell those. Accident reports we provide them and we 19 also do firearms registration for anybody who lives in 20 the city of Detroit come in and register their firearms. 21 The other piece of records management right now is identification and so this is housed at the 22 second floor of the DDC. And at that location we have 23 24 all of the fingerprint cards that we've taken back for 25 well we just purged to 55 years back. We did have cards



1 a lot older than that but we don't have the need to keep 2 those cards longer than that and actually the state 3 recommendation I believe was 40 years. We decided to 4 exceed it a little bit because we wanted to just have a 5 cushion for right now and it didn't cost us anything 6 that we would use the other space for so we felt like we wanted to keep the cards. But they positively identify 7 8 all arrestees so everybody who comes in and is 9 fingerprinted they match up their prints with current 10 Detroit history, make sure that we have any alias names, 11 they do MDOC checks and also applicant background 12 checks. So anybody who needs to get a clearance, what 13 it's referred to, they do that through the detective 14 bureau; they'll come in and get fingerprinted, we'll 15 research their history and then give them a letter 16 indicating what their history is with Detroit.

17 Also part of the is detective bureau the Detroit Detention Center, the court liaison and court 18 19 officers. So the Detroit Detention Center is 20 responsible for processing care and custody of all 21 detainees and they do arrangements and one of the 22 reasons this is part of the detective bureau is because we have some detective personnel that are in house, also 23 24 the court officers who take the warrant packages to 25 court and then the court liaison all together so that

> HANSON RENAISSANCE COULT REPORTED & VIDEO 313-567-8100

there's kind of some seamless communication; we don't run into issues where we're holding people in excessive amount of time.

And as we've gone through this now it's very rare occurrence that we have somebody that we hold more than 48 hours without being arraigned, which is consistent with what the constitutional requirement is. Okay. I know you get a detailed presentation from a lot of these commands so I'm just trying to give a whole overview of our bureau.

11 Crime intelligence unit and they're responsible for identify emerging crime patterns 12 13 throughout the city. They put together packages on 14 those and then send those out to the precincts that then 15 get distributed to officers within the precinct so 16 they're aware of all the crime patterns in their area, 17 what the descriptions of the suspects are. They monitor 18 all the Greenlight Project locations on the 7th floor 19 We're actually starting some construction here in here. the next few weeks on the fourth floor to build a 20 21 permanent realtime crime center. And they'll do any 22 intelligence workup on all critical incidents and any time a detective requests intelligence work up. If they 23 24 give them a name, the Crime Intel Unit, they can search 25 the number in the database and produce a lot of the



10/24/2016

Page 38

information on the individuals if need be for an
 investigation.

3 Also part of that is gang intelligence. 4 They track and monitor known gang affiliations. The 5 Enforcement Arm of Ceasefire and they respond to 6 homicides and nonfatal shootings in the Ceasefire areas. And then they'll respond to scenes in other areas of the 7 8 city on an as-needed basis if we get an early indication that there's maybe gang involvement in a different 9 10 precinct.

11 Also is Avert and Avert stands for the Audio 12 Visual Evidence Recovery Team. So this is a team that 13 goes out to locations throughout the city. There's 14 cameras everywhere now. So a couple of years we found 15 that we really needed to have some team of individuals 16 that were trained up with the specialty to deal with all 17 the different types of systems and to be able to recover 18 that evidence quickly. I'm sure you've probably noticed 19 lately that we have a lot more images and broadcasts on 20 the news, which we use the media as a partner. It 21 hasn't always been the case but we view it that way now, 22 that they're an invaluable tool for us to get that 23 information out quickly. Most of the time when we do we 24 end up with a positive identification in the end. That 25 kind of wraps it up. Any questions?



1	COMMISSIONER BELL: Commissioner.			
2	COMMISSIONER MOORE: Thank you,			
3	Mr. Chairman. Great presentation and I want to commend			
4	you and your staff you have here because a quick			
5	response whenever I have an issue I can just call you or			
6	e-mail you and you'll respond very quickly so I truly			
7	appreciate that. Notice two of the five people you have			
8	standing behind you were from the 10th precinct and they			
9	were snatched away so I guess that's a prerequisite to			
10	join your team is to come through the 10 precinct but I			
11	appreciate your service in the community. Captain Cox			
12	and Captain Miles. Two quick questions: Records			
13	management were they moved recently from the Boulevard			
14	to Southwest Detroit.			
15	DEPUTY CHIEF LEVALLEY: They were, yes.			
16	COMMISSIONER MOORE: How were the citizens			
17	notified of that or were they notified?			
18	DEPUTY CHIEF LEVALLEY: I don't believe			
19	there was a public broadcast of information. I don't			
20	think they would know until they actually either looked			
21	it up online or they got to the location.			
22	COMMISSIONER MOORE: So it is online, the			
23	city website that that move did take place?			
24	DEPUTY CHIEF LEVALLEY: It would be on DPD's			
25	website. I'm not for certain.			



1 COMMISSIONER MOORE: Because I just want to 2 educate the public to make it easy for them. And my 3 last question deals with fingerprints. Okay I 4 understand for homicides, sex crimes, or major crimes 5 fingerprints are automatically taken place. What about 6 for like a stolen car or a home invasion who would make 7 that call as to who would fingerprint?

8 DEPUTY CHIEF LEVALLEY: You're talking about 9 the the crime scene; it would be the detectives that are 10 assigned to the case. Stolen cars it would depend on 11 the situation for the recovery. All carjacking vehicles 12 where the person was robbed are held for prints and 13 they're taken to 7800 Dix because we have an indoor 14 garage; they process every day cars at that location. 15 On a regular straights deal what we refer to when the 16 person wasn't robbed and the car wasn't taken, that 17 would be more on a case by case basis if there's an 18 observation that they think there might be a fingerprint 19 available, and then the other one you asked about was? 20 COMMISSIONER MOORE: Home invasions. 21 DEPUTY CHIEF LEVALLEY: Those are the 22 detectives within the precinct and they have the ability to send over work requests and we have teams that work 23 24 during the day that they go out and process scenes based 25 on the requests that come in so detectives would tell

> HANSON RENAISSANCE COURT REPORTERS & VIDEO 313-567-8100

1	the individual don't tamper with the area until the		
2	techs get here and they'll come out and dust.		
3	COMMISSIONER MOORE: Thank you, Chief.		
4	COMMISSIONER BELL: Commissioners?		
5	COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: Yes, thank you. I		
6	have two questions real quick. How many employees do		
7	you have in your bureau and how many are sworn officers		
8	and civilian? Just a round.		
9	DEPUTY CHIEF LEVALLEY: Yeah, about 400 in		
10	the bureau. And of that probably 320 are sworn and 80		
11	non-sworn.		
12	COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: Okay and then just		
13	another quick question. On the fingerprints are any of		
14	those well I know that probably the high level like		
15	homicide fingerprints would go into a national database.		
16	Are there just certain levels of crime that go into the		
17	national data base or do they all?		
18	DEPUTY CHIEF LEVALLEY: No, they all go in.		
19	COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: Thank you.		
20	COMMISSIONER SHELBY: Through the chair.		
21	Yeah just a quick question. Great presentation, Chief.		
22	As it relates to our sex crimes what's at issue in the		
23	rape kits. Are rape kits being processed in a timely		
24	manner now?		
25	DEPUTY CHIEF LEVALLEY: Yes, they go out		



1 three times a week so there's usually no more than a 48 2 hour delay in a rape kit being shipped from us out to a 3 And we are of all of the 11,570 some kits those lab. 4 are I'll say almost all tested. The number that aren't 5 tested at this point is very small. And when I say when 6 aren't tested the kits that we have right now that I should say haven't been retested because we tested them 7 8 at one point but the technology has changed and so we're 9 working through sending some of those kits out to be 10 retested. But years ago it wasn't quite at advanced so 11 there's some of the early kits that we still have to 12 resend.

13 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Through the chair 14 and thanks for the presentation, Chief and also the visualization I see all the people backing you up. 15 16 That's a good visual because often times we get 17 presentations and people are sitting out there but I 18 want to thank you. It's really appropriate and I 19 appreciate it. Also too as a follow-up on the test kits 20 too I believe the question was being processed, well, 21 yes you stated sent out in 48 hours but also too I think 22 I read something recently that it's like 44 days but that's on the state; it has nothing to do with DPD. 23 24 DEPUTY CHIEF LEVALLEY: Right.

25 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Like they're



1 processing the kit is I think I read something like a 44 2 day turnaround or something like that. DEPUTY CHIEF LEVALLEY: That would in our 3 experience be fast I believe; 44 days would be fast in 4 5 our experience. 6 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: There was something I read in the media recently about that. Also too this 7 is in terms of domestic violence. This is domestic 8 9 violence awareness month and I note there's nothing to 10 indicate whether domestic violence is up or down. Ι 11 don't know if it'd be appropriate to be on this reporting out once a week or maybe something once a 12 13 month, something like that. CAPTAIN COX: It's included in the 14 15 aggravated assaults. 16 COMMANDER CRAWFORD: Oh it's included. 17 DEPUTY CHIEF LEVALLEY: So, sir, at the next 18 board meeting is when the formal presentation for 19 domestic violence comes next week. 20 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Yes, sir. 21 THE WITNESS: So Captain Cox will be giving that presentation and the whole time will be devoted 22 just to domestic violence. 23 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: That would be fine 24 25 because this is so important. It's so important to know

> HANSON RENAISSANCE COURT REPORTERS & VIDEO 313-567-8100

1 whether or not it's up or down because as you well know 2 there are some things start off as domestic violence and 3 they evolve into other things.

4 DEPUTY CHIEF LEVALLEY: Yeah, and Captain's 5 been working on some programs that I'm sure they'll 6 touch on next week for domestic violence prevention 7 that; he's been rolling out to certain areas of the city 8 so.

9 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Yes all right thank 10 you, sir.

11 COMMISSIONER VANN: Mr. Chair. Great presentation of course. In my district, in District 2, 12 13 northwest Detroit the two highest complaints there of 14 course are medical marijuana dispensaries and prostitution especially in the Woodward 6 Mile, 7 Mile 15 16 Palmer Park area. Does that come under major violators? 17 DEPUTY CHIEF LEVALLEY: It does, as well as 18 vice, yes. And also the precincts too so vice is a city 19 wide unit that covers a lot of areas but they do regular 20 operations up in that John R. Woodward 7 mile area and 21 so does the 12th precinct they're usually doing an 22 operation twice a week up there, once to twice a week for street prostitution activity. I'm sure that the 23 24 level of activity there could warrant some more, yes. 25 And as well as the medical marijuana locations right now



1 we're working through licensing those locations and 2 shutting down the ones that don't belong or that aren't 3 licensed. Once we get --4 COMMISSIONER VANN: It just appears to some in the community that the process is a bit slow 5 6 especially with the medical marijuana dispensaries. 7 THE WITNESS: It has I know been slower than 8 the mayor and the law department would have liked and 9 it's I believe because of some licensing and legal 10 challenges at this point. But we're -- the department 11 is ready to shut them down once we get the green light to do so. 12 13 COMMISSIONER VANN: Okay. Does this 14 include --15 DEPUTY CHIEF LEVALLEY: It's not really a 16 detailed answer there because it's a little bit outside 17 of our purview. 18 COMMISSIONER VANN: So does this area also 19 include human trafficking as well? 20 DEPUTY CHIEF LEVALLEY: Yes, that -- not 21 major violators. Vice will do a little bit of that if 22 they come across it but it more belongs the task forces, 23 the task force administration. So we have some officers 24 that belong to SEMCAC, which is Southeastern Michigan 25 Crimes Against Children Task Force. And they do a lot

> HANSON RENAISSANCE COURT REPORTERS & VIDEO COURT REPORTERS & VIDEO 313-567-8100

1	of work with human trafficking and especially children				
2	that are being sold or used for sex trade.				
3	COMMISSIONER VANN: Okay.				
4	COMMISSIONER BELL: Any other comments				
5	commissioner? Questions? I just have a brief comment.				
6	Could you every now and then we get victim family appear				
7	at the meeting and they are not satisfied with the				
8	investigation and I know every homicide that this is				
9	growing in terms of the families victim, you know. And				
10	I have history of working with So Sad and now we got				
11	these moms; we had met with the moms and chief, you				
12	know. Could you walk us briefly through the steps in				
13	terms of once a homicide victim, what is the process of				
14	dealing with the families? Could you give us a glimpse				
15	of how you approach it in terms of the victim families?				
16	CAPTAIN MILES: Once a homicide occurs we				
17	identify				
18	COMMISSIONER BELL: Your name.				
19	CAPTAIN MILES: I'm sorry, Captain Elaine				
20	Miles, homicide for the record. Once we identify the				
21	next of kin or the next family member, we typically deal				
22	with that person in terms of getting information.				
23	COMMISSIONER BELL: I'm sorry, that mic is				
24	not maybe. Maybe raise it up.				
25	CAPTAIN MILES: Can you hear me? We				

HANSON RENAISSANCE COURT REPORTERS & VIDEO 313-567-8100

1 typically deal with the next of kin or the person to 2 give information. With that being said a lot of times you'll have a man that may be married; we will never 3 4 discount the mother or the father. If somebody calls 5 and wants information in regards to their loved ones, we definitely make sure that we're available to give them 6 7 that information. That's one of the reasons that we 8 partner with Mothers of Murdered Children; we actually 9 are working with the founder and they're going to 10 actually have a space in our office. They're going to 11 be in ours office; they're going to be available to the detectives in order to reach out to the families. We 12 13 found that it's very beneficial for typically within 48 14 to 72 hours they're ready to speak to someone and Andrea Clark she's awesome; she's the founder of Mothers of 15 16 Murdered Children and she's been reaching out to these 17 mothers and embracing them because she has support 18 groups and other things.

So partnering with them, talking to the detectives, getting them some sensitivity training in terms of you know they deal with this day in and day out. They see it time after time but understanding that this family this is -- they're dealing with this in real time so we want to make sure that we're sensitive to the needs of the family as well. So we are just because



Page 48 1 it's the next of kin that doesn't mean we won't speak to 2 the mother or the father; if they call, if they request information, we absolutely will call them back and give 3 them that information. 4 5 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you, Captain, for 6 sharing that information. Any other questions or comments? If not -- yes? 7 8 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: I just have one 9 question, Captain you've been in charge of the homicide 10 unit for how long? 11 CAPTAIN MILES: Three months. 12 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Okay thank you. 13 COMMISSIONER BELL: Deputy Chief and your 14 staff thank you for outstanding interaction with the 15 board and we looking forward to (inaudible). 16 DEPUTY CHIEF LEVALLEY: Thank you. 17 ASSISTANT CHIEF WHITE: I have one more 18 brief presentation; I should have brought it up sooner 19 as we were on the tow issues Deputy Chief Renee Hall has 20 just a very brief presentation for the board with 21 regards to some information that came out in the media 22 today as it relates to towing and potentially that there's some impropriety with regards to how the tows 23 24 are selected downtown.

> HANSON RENAISSANCE COURT REPORTERS & VIDEO 313-567-8100

DEPUTY CHIEF HALL: I just want to bring to

25

1 the board I do have a packet that I'll hand you. The 2 media talked about briefly some type of disparity in a 3 towing from one area to another. We pulled the towing for the entire summer. What the media talked about was 4 5 towing at Chene Park, Chene and Atwater, being 6 disproportionate than the rest of downtown. I'm sorry, 7 Deputy Chief Renee Hall. So what I pulled to ensure 8 that we are above board in everything the continuity of 9 towing in the downtown area is legitimate. I pulled the 10 activities for the entire summer and it shows that there 11 is just as much as towing taking place at baseball 12 games, football games, hockey games, as well as at the 13 Chene Park area.

What we are enforcing in the downtown area 14 15 that illegal parking cannot be tolerated. We deal with 16 larcenies and all of those things and we want to make 17 sure that these cars are properly parked and if you look 18 at the tow rotation it will show you that there is no 19 one particular tower. The tows are done what we 20 understand is that when we do a detail, we call into our 21 communications system, they give us a tow number, and 22 that number goes all the way through but it is divided 23 between the towers that are in that respective area. So 24 if it's in the 7th precinct or the downtown area, the 25 towers who are responsible for that area go in rotation



and each tower is contacted to pick up the cars in the next order. So that's just to address that information that came across the media today.

4 COMMISSIONER BELL: I'm glad you responded 5 because I received a telephone call last night in 6 reference to downtown Chene Park and I told them that as far as I know you would have to really contact the 7 8 department in terms of update on that. I'm glad you 9 shared that with us. I would just a couple weekend ago 10 in D.C. and as you well know there's nowhere to park; you have to pay for parking; if not, you're going to get 11 towed quickly; real quick. 12

13 DEPUTY CHIEF HALL: Yes.

14 COMMISSIONER BELL: So you just can't --15 this city's growing and downtown and all these events we 16 are now into the real world parking issues so there's no 17 room for allowed vehicles just to park where they want 18 to park so I'm glad to witness that so I'm glad you 19 responded.

DEPUTY CHIEF HALL: And just another piece of that is when vehicles are illegal parked especially in that Chene Park area that is a major traveling thoroughfare going along the river access to the Marriott Hotel as well as all the different businesses around there so we need to ensure that emergency

> HANSON RENAISSANCE COURT REPORTERS & VIDEO 313-567-8100

vehicles can accurately get through there at any point in time. We do see an enormious amount of activity there. People kind of hanging out and so we do tow a lot in that area but no more than any other area when there's large groups.

6 COMMISSIONER BELL: Any unique issue with Free Press Marathon as far as parking and towing? 7 8 DEPUTY CHIEF HALL: We did have some towing 9 issues but nothing out of the ordinary. A great event. 10 Incident free. We had a Free Press Marathon going on at 11 the exact same time as the football game so a lot of patrons downtown, a lot of runners, a lot of activities, 12 13 bars, restaurants all full with no incidents so we just 14 thank the men and women in the city of Detroit for 15 continuing to keep us safe.

16 COMMISSIONER BELL: Commissioners?
17 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Through the chair.
18 Thanks Chief, Deputy Chief, the historically, and I say
19 historically because I remember in the past for years

20 and I'm not surprised by the media reporting something, 21 well, trying to connect something to what is really not 22 in terms of this other investigation involving towers. 23 Even one of the articles a couple of days ago even 24 referenced what was going on with narcotics, you know, 25 the individuals who were convicted via by federal law



1 recently, which had nothing to do with this towing 2 investigation but I want to say historically previously years ago there was always this issue of what was 3 4 stepped up towing and ticketing particularly when it was 5 a African American event and people didn't see or as 6 citizens would often say and even something that I witnessed years ago and I'm talking plus back 20 years 7 8 ago whereas it seems to be the stepped up activity of 9 ticketing and towing and people would look at the other 10 events sometimes things going on at the stadiums and 11 stuff and their perception is they didn't perceive that. 12 But as I've always told people, too, if you attend 13 something in downtown Detroit or anywhere park where 14 you're supposed to park so.

15 DEPUTY CHIEF HALL: That's what we 16 encourage. And I can assure you that there's no 17 disparagement in treatment based on one event to the 18 other. Our whole purpose is safety whether you're 19 downtown or mid town or east side or west side that's 20 our whole responsibility and that's what we focus on; 21 and towing is just another area to make sure that the 22 vehicles are safe and put in a safe place as well as our streets are safe and people can actually get in and out. 23 24 As the Chair said, commission chair said, we 25 are seeing so much growth in the city of the Detroit; we



1 often times have upwards of 500,000 people in the 2 downtown area at one time. So we need to make sure that people can get the ingress and egress is simple for most 3 4 people coming in and out so that's what our goal is. 5 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: And also too there 6 is a difference between department ticketing and you're parking in municipal parking enforcement. People need 7 8 to understand there there is a difference, too. 9 DEPUTY CHIEF HALL: Yes, they pretty much 10 write the parking tickets. They don't do as much as towing usually but there is a difference between parking 11 enforcement and the city of Detroit. 12 13 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Yes, ma'am, thank 14 you. 15 COMMISSIONER BELL: Commissioner Moore. 16 COMMISSIONER MOORE: Yes, I didn't read the 17 article. Just a point of clarification are there more 18 tows that occur in downtown Detroit as compared to the 19 rest of the city or what part of the city would you say 20 generates the most tows? 21 DEPUTY CHIEF HALL: I don't have the 22 accurate information but if I just had to go off of what we do in a day, I would say it has to be in the downtown 23 24 We have multiple events on any given day in the area. 25 downtown area. We have as I said before upwards of 2,

> HANSON RENAISSANCE COURT REPORTERS & VIDEO 313-567-8100

300, 400 thousand people in the area at the same time.
 There is limited parking as you well know. Not enough
 parking garages, not enough surface lots so people tend
 to park wherever they can and that requires us to
 enforce our parking.

6 COMMISSIONER MOORE: And just recently I 7 guess at a Detroit Lions game there were some people 8 charged 25 dollars for parking and they weren't 9 authorized to do it and the vehicles came up towed. 10 What unit from the police department or city of Detroit 11 perhaps would be responsible for regulating the 12 different lots, parking lots?

13 DEPUTY CHIEF HALL: That's a joint effort 14 between the Detroit Police Department as well as the 15 private partners in the downtown area. The Lions, the 16 Detroit Lions parking enforcement as well as Comerica so 17 what we've done is we have a parking lot summit we put 18 together and together we are enforcing these lots that 19 they are fenced in, lighted, and that they have 20 individuals who have the proper credentials and proper 21 uniform so that they're easy and readily identifiable to 22 anyone coming into the city to park.

23 So we do often times get those individuals 24 with an orange vest that they found I don't know where 25 and a flag and they'll wave you in. One of the things



1 we want to ensure that our patrons and the people who 2 visit the city if someone's charging you 5 dollars to park next to a lot that's 30 dollars, we want you to be 3 4 a little bit wiser that clearly parking in that area 5 cannot be 5 dollars if everyone else is paying 30 6 dollars. And just want, you know, to make sure if they have any questions to reach out. We truly have a lot of 7 8 police presence in the downtown area as we do across the 9 city right now and we just want to make sure that they 10 reach out if they have questions to call their Green 11 Lights in need -- Blue Lights I'm sorry in the downtown 12 area that they can ask, stop, talk to someone if they're 13 uncertain. 14 COMMISSIONER MOORE: Is there a standardized placard that each parking lot would have? 15 16 DEPUTY CHIEF HALL: They are establishing 17 that right now. There's not one in place at this time. 18 January 1st through the 31st is when everything is 19 supposed to be solidified for the parking in the 20 downtown area so everyone is uniformed. 21 COMMISSIONER MOORE: Thank you for that 22 because a ring is often times set up on these lots for parking. 23 24 DEPUTY CHIEF HALL: We're enforcing that as

> HANSON RENAISSANCE COURT REPORTERS & VIDEO 313-567-8100

much as we can, you know, doing everything that we can

25

1 as a police department to identify those individuals as 2 we're driving around patrolling to curtail it as much as 3 we can. COMMISSIONER MOORE: Yes, ma'am, thank you. 4 5 COMMISSIONER SANDERS: Through the chair. 6 COMMISSIONER BELL: Yes, sir. 7 COMMISSIONER SANDERS: I'd like to know for 8 each precinct it's a certain amount of tow companies 9 designated for that precinct; am I correct? 10 DEPUTY CHIEF HALL: Yes, that is my 11 understanding. Yes, sir. COMMISSIONER SANDERS: So is it a number of 12 13 four or five for each precinct or do you go by the 14 precinct or how many tow company they can tow for that precinct specifically? 15 16 DEPUTY CHIEF HALL: I want you to forgive my ignorance on that. I do not know the specific number of 17 18 tows. 19 COMMISSIONER SANDERS: He should know. 20 DEPUTY CHIEF HALL: Do you have? You have, 21 okay. I didn't even see you I'm sorry. 22 COMMISSIONER SANDERS: I saw him. 23 ASSISTANT CHIEF WHITE: This is Officer 24 Kenyatta Myers and he oversees the towing process 25 through the department.

> HANSON RENAISSANCE COURT REPORTERS & VIDEO 313-567-8100

1	OFFICER MYERS: Good afternoon. I'm				
2	Kenyatta Myers as the assistant chief said. There is a				
3	varying number of tow companies in the precincts that				
4	vary from just 3 tow companies in the 12th and 10th				
5	precincts to 7 in the 5th and 9th precinct but the 9th				
6	precinct is the busiest for tows with the police				
7	department outside of downtown.				
8	COMMISSIONER MOORE: What causes the 9th				
9	precinct to be the busiest?				
10	OFFICER MYERS: Stolen cars. You get stolen				
11	cars, abandoned cars, you get everything in number 9.				
12	COMMISSIONER BELL: It's not a east side				
13	thing it's just one of those things.				
14	COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: I live on the east				
15	side.				
16	COMMISSIONER MOORE: Who's the commissioner				
17	at the 9th precinct?				
18	COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: I am.				
19	COMMISSIONER MOORE: Oh he's absent, okay.				
20	Thank you, sir. Thanks for cleaning up the precincts.				
21	COMMISSIONER BELL: I just want to commend				
22	Captain Petty and the D.C. and all of them they doing an				
23	outstanding job in downtown, all those activities. I				
24	was there for the 5K, you know, on Saturday for the				
25	little ones and, you know, they work in terms of the				

HANSON RENAISSANCE COURT REPORTERS & VIDEO 1313-567-8100

parking situation. I'm glad that it didn't make the free press this year but it's always something that's well coordinated in terms of activities what they do downtown.

5 COMMISSIONER MOORE: Just one quick 6 question. I just thought the NPO Summit which is coming 7 up this weekend I was ordered by Commander Bettison to 8 put out an e-mail blast and I did that so I'm just 9 wondering about parking for those citizens that might 10 come down. Is there relaxed parking for this particular 11 event?

DEPUTY CHIEF HALL: The Marriott does have 12 13 parking, there's a parking garage at the Marriott. 14 Permission to speak freely. When we relax parking we get these disparaging comments because if we relax 15 16 parking for some, then it's expected to relax parking 17 for all. Why do we do it for us; we can't do it 18 everybody else. So what we want to do is to maintain 19 our integrity as it relates to parking enforcement so we 20 will work something out for seniors and those 21 individuals that are coming downtown for the Summit. 22 Okay. We're encouraging them but we want to make sure that and Commander Bettison may have some additional 23 24 information. We could also probably shuttle from 20 Atwater if that's necessary. 25



1	COMMANDER BETTISON: Compliments to the	
2	Detroit Public Safety Foundation they're going to be	
3	covering the parking. So we'll have signs out and be	
4	able to let folks know exactly where they will be	
5	parking.	
6	COMMISSIONER MOORE: Outstanding, thank you.	
7	COMMISSIONER BELL: Yes, sir.	
8	CAPTAIN PETTY: Downtown services through	
9	the chair. Just another FYI. They're commissioned in	
10	the U.S. in Detroit on Saturday as well so that will be	
11	downtown. Parking will be heavily congested. I think	
12	it's at 11 it might start as early as 10:00. I'll send	
13	you an e-mail when I get back to my office. And they're	
14	trying to show least 1,500 to get them (inaudible) so	
15	keep that in mind.	
16	COMMISSIONER BELL: Once again parking. The	
17	next item of business would be standing and Ad hoc	
18	committee reports at this time? Okay.	
19	COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Mr. Chair through	
20	the chair in terms of the Ad hoc committee for towing is	
21	there going to be a meeting?	
22	COMMISSIONER BELL: We in the process of	
23	working out scheduling and a timeframe to meet and	
24	hopefully in the next several days we can meet in that	
25	timeframe.	

HANSON RENAISSANCE COURT REPORTERS & VIDEO 1313-567-8100 10/24/2016

Page 60 1 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Yes, sir. Thank you 2 very much. COMMISSIONER BELL: We'll be communicating 3 4 with you on that. Mr. Hicks. 5 MR. HICKS: I have no report at this time. 6 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you. Any new 7 business? Old business? I think we need to speak to 8 the Halloween task force. Mr. Hicks, I think we sent 9 out communication to the commissioners if they want to 10 participate. 11 MR. HICKS: Yes. Yes. 12 COMMISSIONER BELL: Halloween task force is 13 what 29th, 30th and 31st in those three days. 14 MR. HICKS: I think commissioner you said

everything. But what we were trying to do is encourage as we are with all of our employees full participation in the Angels Night activity. A number of the staff are doing things in their respective communities. OCI for example has corralled a number of its staff and they're doing some things that are going to operate out of the Coleman Young building if I recall.

And for commissioners what we're trying to do is to get commissioners to kind of buddy up with each other and participate in the activities. Their activity is going to be again more community based because the



1 way in which you tend to work and operate within the 2 community is through community-based organizations and then they'll be a few people who are like the chair who 3 4 will be moving around city wide and essentially at that 5 point really just going to varying locations and it 6 probably would be locations where, I'm not going to say 7 that we'll be mirroring the travel of the mayor and the 8 chief but we'll be coming right after them anyway. But 9 that's for the purpose of showing that the board is 10 active and supportive of the activities as they have 11 been on Angels Night. 12 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you, sir. Any 13 other comments in that area? Yes, sir. MR. HICKS: Commissioner, there was also an 14 15 item that I had sent out that Commissioner Dewaelsche 16 may want to speak to it but SER Metro is going to be 17 doing a luncheon, a business recognition luncheon but I did send that information out. 18 19 COMMISSIONER DEWAELSCHE: Right, it's our annual event that we have every year and it's October 20 21 25th at the Ford Conference Center and I think we did 22 e-mail that information to the board. Thank you. But I 23 would also like to make a comment about Angels night. 24 SER Metro also and I'm sure that some of the other 25 commissioners' organizations are involved in Angels



Night. We sponsor Angels Night with the mayor's office
 and we work in our district of southwest Detroit so I
 just wanted to make that known and we do it every year
 so.

5 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you.

6 COMMISSIONER MOORE: Another note of old business to you Assistant Chief last week we brought up 7 8 at the commission meeting about two promotions that were 9 given up posthumously I know Stile and a question came 10 about how does that happen? What goes about those 11 promotions? Is it money involved? Things of that 12 nature so we never did get any clarification on that. I 13 sent out e-mail to try to, you know, find out off the 14 record but it wasn't responded to so now I'm asking you. 15 ASSISTANT CHIEF WHITE: Who did you send the 16 e-mail to?

17 COMMISSIONER MOORE: I'll tell you off the 18 record.

ASSISTANT CHIEF WHITE: Okay. I will get information and I will tell you that there's no economic benefit to the promotion. I do know that for a fact but with regards to what went into it specifically if you want to talk offline, we can.

24 COMMISSIONER MOORE: Okay.

25 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you. Any other



10/24/2016

Page 63

old business? Announcement: Next meeting would be on
Thursday, October the 27th at 3 p.m. at the Public
Safety Headquarters. And the next community meeting in
November the 10th is 6:30 p.m. would be the 7th precinct
that would be the Church of the Christ Elmwood Park.
Oral communication from the audience; you have two
minutes. Please give your name for the record.

8 I just want to say to the public sometimes there's individuals want to come before this board and 9 10 render criticism or suggestions or I think there's in 11 appropriate comments. I would hope that you address your question and concerns to the board in the vain of 12 13 respect. If you have some specific criticism, see the 14 chair or the board secretary but we are not going to be 15 monitored or be chastised in that manner by anyone and I 16 think it would be appropriate to ask you to confine your 17 remarks because I looked at other bodies they don't 18 witness that type of dialogue, the council and other 19 bodies. So I don't think we want to continue down that 20 path in our public form.

21 We have an old mic process but for you to 22 come before this board and talk about unity and you're 23 not doing this and you're not doing that I think there's 24 a proper way to convey that but for us to -- we are 25 public servants, volunteers and we serve the public to



1 the best of our ability. And this should be respect by 2 all concerned parties.

3 I hope that you're not offended by it but I 4 just want to share that with you that we have talked 5 about it informally as commissioners and we feel as 6 though sometimes it's just inappropriate in terms of 7 some of the comments and we are not here to promote any 8 political party or any religion affiliation. Those 9 announcements not appropriate. If it's community-based, 10 then we want to hear and we want to share that. But in 11 terms of inappropriate remark we going to share that if 12 you come forward, then I will cut you off at the mic and 13 hold comments on that but I want to make sure that if 14 you have any concern that we're not operating properly, 15 contact the chair or the board secretary or any 16 commissioner and we would take that under advisement 17 thank you. Yes, ma'am.

18 MRS. BUTLER: Good afternoon, my name is 19 Fredia M. Butler. And I'm the president of the 2nd 20 Precinct Police Community Relations Council. On October 21 the 11th at our monthly meeting we had our guest 22 detective Brian Fountain and remember, I'm sure you 23 remember earlier when I first started attending the 24 meetings was because I was upset when I lost my Captain 25 Rochon. And I told you I didn't have anything against



1 who our new person so I couldn't speak at that time 2 about our new person but I am here today to tell you 3 that our commander, Commander Brian. 4 Mounsey and Captain Bihail Muhammad is at the 2nd 5 precinct at this time and on October the 11th as I spoke 6 before that Detective Fountain was complimenting our 7 commander on the outstanding work that he's doing in our 8 community. And so I just want you to know that I told 9 you before if I have concerns about anything that's 10 happening that I know that involves the police officers, 11 I have no problems stepping up to say what I have to 12 say.

13 So he is doing -- they are doing outstanding 14 work and of course we all must work together. It can't 15 be all on the police. They have a whole lot of work 16 that they do but I'm very, very pleased with the work 17 that is being done in our community. And I thank you. 18 I'm sure you weren't talking about me about complaining. 19 COMMISSIONER MOORE: Thank you for that 20 compliment..

21 MRS. BUTLER: That we have a community 22 conversation that's going on at the African American 23 museum on the 29th that is called the freedom schools 24 and it's called the freedom schools but it's really to 25 tutoring programs that's been offered in the community



and I hope that you will be able to come. That's
 October the 29th at 1 p.m. at the African American
 museum, thank you.

4 COMMISSIONER BELL: Commissioner. 5 COMMISSIONER SANDERS: Mrs. Butler, I'm glad 6 that you got to know the officers at precinct 2 because that's a place that I stay at and I've been dealing with 7 8 them for a while and they've been pretty good to me and 9 I know they'll be pretty good to the citizens and you 10 got an open mind to work with them and you're going to 11 find out that those guys is excellent. If you call, 12 they don't put you on hold they get back with you. And 13 Mr. Muhammad, I mean, I had personal personal experience 14 with them I was just flabbergasted that they did such an 15 excellent job.

16 MRS. BUTLER: Of course. We didn't have any 17 problems with police officers. I was complaining 18 because we lost the captain who was doing a great job. 19 And I didn't know who was coming and what he was going 20 to do and I told you then that I would be back but I 21 didn't get, you know, I wouldn't complain about him. Ι 22 was complaining about Captain Rochon being moved that's So we have an outstanding --23 all.

COMMISSIONER BELL: Ma'am President, well I'm glad that you're now the president. That is a



1 proper dialogue with the board in reference to the loss 2 of your captain. You know, so I would not steer my 3 remarks in that matter. That's a proper concern and I'm 4 glad that you continue to interact with us and it's 5 always good to hear form you. 6 MRS. BUTLER: And if you move Commander. Mounsey, we going to have a problem again. 7 8 COMMISSIONER BELL: Yes, ma'am. Thank you. 9 MRS. SMITH: Good afternoon, Bernice Smith, 10 political activist to the commissioner and to you, 11 Chief. I come before you this afternoon to let you know I felt very bad with our discussion last week that we 12 13 had between you and myself Commissioner Bell. I know 14 you were speaking about the incident just now so I was 15 very upset about it and it will never, never happen 16 It wasn't a political announcement but again. 17 nevertheless it was the minister's but I just want to 18 let you know it will never happen again. I'm too 19 intelligent whether you believe it or not to let 20 anything like this ever be displayed again in public and 21 again I apologize to all of the commissioners, all 22 right, and I hope you accept my apology. 23 COMMISSIONER BELL: Yes, ma'am, I respect 24 vou ma'am. 25 MRS. SMITH: Thank you my dear. You still



1 my dear. In the meantime, Regie please don't make me 2 laugh. In the meantime I am disappointed with what's going on in the public in regards to the -- I was late 3 coming in but I do hope that we will settle it and it 4 5 will not be broadcast on the radio and in the newspaper. 6 But I feel as though the officers should think before 7 they do things in that nature because we got a darn good 8 police department. I've always said it and I always 9 support it whatever you've done and I always brag about 10 that we don't have any bad marks against ourselves but 11 in the meantime sometimes we do fall through the things 12 so again I apologize to you and I will be on my best 13 behavior and I'll hurry and get up and through with two 14 minutes. Take care.

15 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you, ma'am.

16 MR. DIVERS: Arthur Divers good afternoon. 17 And liaison for Councilman George Cushingberry. As you 18 know he asked me to come and sit in on your discussions 19 and report back to him what I have heard. And I want to 20 tell you I am absolutely amazed at the presentation that 21 was presented today. The wide range of things that the 22 department does and so forth and just as a citizen it 23 empowers me that I have a great deal more knowledge so 24 that when people come forth. And, see, I'm also 25 President of Winship Community Association and we have a



1 lot of people who are concerned about the police and 2 activities and if they have a comment where to go and so 3 forth. This presentation did give me a lot of 4 information as about the departments, what they do, what their responsibilities are, and I've been amazed that 5 6 the things that are covered and the work that they do. 7 And I just want to commend the department 8 and its officers for a job well done. And I just want 9 to come before you and express it publicly. I'm very 10 pleased and I will certainly convey this kind of 11 comments and information to Councilman George Cushingberry the President of the Detroit City Council. 12 13 Thank you. 14 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you, sir. Any other comments? Commissioners, chair would -- sir? 15 16 MR. BATES: My name is Bobby Davis Bates. 17 I'm here on behalf of the Moorish Science Temple-America 18 and we -- I wasn't here to hear all the conversations 19 that went on but what brought me here today was the -- I 20 saw it on the news about the city corruption with the 21 police and that's what brought us here today. I have 22 been a victim of what went on with the towing of the police being -- I mean of the tow companies towing cars 23 24 out. My car been broken into three times downtown right 25 down in Detroit where we are supposed to be safe in our



10/24/2016

Page 70

1 city. And I'm a human rights activist and I'm just here
2 to get a view on the community and get a better
3 understanding and build a bridge between the Moorish
4 community and the city of Detroit.

5 We are a distinct, individual group of 6 people and my interactions with the police in dealing with my Moorish nation they don't understand that we 7 8 have rights as citizens here in America and we want to gain and build a bridge between the police and the 9 10 Moorish Science Temple of America so that when the 11 police have an encounter with us know, they will know and understand what our rights is as citizens. 12

13 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Hold on.

COMMISSIONER BELL: Commissioner Crawford. 14 15 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: Through the chair. 16 Thank you for coming out because what has been occurring 17 across the country in terms of the Moorish community is I think has been a serious, serious lack of 18 19 communication and understanding among police departments 20 across this country and as a matter of fact I've been 21 following some stuff in the media across the county for 22 years and I thank you for coming out because I never heard anybody or seen or read of anyone reaching out 23 24 from the Moorish community to the police department. 25 So I as a commissioner, and I'm a



10/24/2016

Page 71

1 commissioner in District 3, but as Commissioner Bell 2 stated and I'm sure I'm not speaking for all the 3 commissioners but we welcome you and your members to 4 come in any time and especially sit down for discussion 5 and I'm sure those in the department too because this is 6 so important for the communication and the 7 understanding. 8 MR. BATES: Yes. 9 COMMISSIONER CRAWFORD: You know, because 10 there's been some serious, serious incidents that have 11 occurred and even resulted in fatalities across this 12 country involving members from the Moorish community and 13 some police departments. Yes, sir, so thank you very 14 much. 15 MR. BATES: Thank you, you too. 16 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you, sir. Commissioners? 17 18 COMMISSIONER MOORE: I was going to say, 19 Mr. Chair, maybe Commander Bettison can talk to 20 Mr. Bates -- is the commander still here -- just to 21 establish that relationship. 22 COMMANDER BETTISON: Yep. 23 COMMISSIONER BELL: Thank you. The chair 24 would entertain a motion for adjournment. 25 COMMISSIONER MOORE: Support.



1		COMMISSIONER CARTER: Moved.
2		COMMISSIONER BELL: All in favor aye.
3		ALL: Aye.
4		COMMISSIONER BELL: Motion carried. Thank
5	you.	
6		(Meeting concluded at 4:36 p.m.)
7		
8		
9		
10		
11		
12		
13		
14		
15		
16		
17		
18		
19		
20		
21		
22		
23		
24		
25		



1	STATE OF MICHIGAN)
2)
3	COUNTY OF WASHTENAW)
4	
5	CERTIFICATE OF NOTARY PUBLIC AND COURT REPORTER
6	I, Caitlyn Mancini, do hereby certify that the
7	above-entitled meeting was duly recorded by me
8	stenographically and by me later reduced to typewritten
9	form by means of computer-aided transcription; and I
10	certify that this is a true and correct transcript of my
11	stenographic notes so taken.
12	I further certify that I am neither of counsel to
13	either party nor interested in the event of this cause.
14	S. NDTC4.
14 15	
	Citly Manui
15	Caitlyn Mancini, RPR, CSR-8887
15 16	
15 16 17	Caitlyn Mancini, RPR, CSR-8887
15 16 17 18	Caitlyn Mancini, RPR, CSR-8887 Notary Public,
15 16 17 18 19	Caitlyn Mancini, RPR, CSR-8887 Notary Public, Washtenaw County, Michigan
15 16 17 18 19 20	Caitlyn Mancini, RPR, CSR-8887 Notary Public, Washtenaw County, Michigan
15 16 17 18 19 20 21	Caitlyn Mancini, RPR, CSR-8887 Notary Public, Washtenaw County, Michigan
15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	Caitlyn Mancini, RPR, CSR-8887 Notary Public, Washtenaw County, Michigan
15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	Caitlyn Mancini, RPR, CSR-8887 Notary Public, Washtenaw County, Michigan



Page 1

Α **a.m** 34:19 abandoned 57:11 abatements 30:17 **ability** 40:22 64**:**1 **able** 27:2 30:13 32:10 34:16 38:17 59:4 66:1 above-entitled 73.7 absences 7:5 **absent** 57:19 absolutely 17:7 48:3 68:20 **abuse** 28:10,11 28:12 **academy** 28:22 **accept** 67:22 **access** 9:14 10:5 50:23 accident 26:5 35:18 accountability 10:3 33:20 accountable 18:22 19:4,21 **accurate** 53:22 accurately 51:1 accused 10:5**act**13:22 14:20 **action** 14:18 **actions** 12:21 18:22,23 **active** 11:23 22:13 61:10 **actively** 21:17 activist 67:10 70.1 activities 49:10 51:12 57:23 58:3 60:24 61:10 69:2 **activity** 29:19 30:21 44:23,24 51:2 52:8 60:17,24 **actual** 13:8 **Ad**10:11 20:22 59:17,20

added 28:24 **addition** 25:17 25:20,22 additional 58:23 address 10:2 50:2 63:11 addressed 17:1 adjournment 71:24 adjustment 6:15 adjustments 6:12 administration 8:16 14:9 25:2 31:1 32:12 45:23 adoption 5:20 **advanced** 42:10 advisement 64:16 **affairs** 8:6 9:17 12:1 20:9,12 affiliation 64:8 affiliations 38:4 **AFIS** 33:4,10 African 52:5 65:22 66:2 afternoon 4:5,64:8 5:17,19 9:1 11:17 22:23 24:14 57:1 64:18 67:9,11 68:16 **age** 28:12 agencies 31:19 35:16 **agenda** 5:18 aggravated 23:3 43:15 **ago**14:25 35:6 42:10 50:9 51:23 52:3,7,8 agreement 28:23 **ahead** 15:5 **alias** 36:10 allegation 10:14 allegations 14:13 25:13 28:11 **alleged** 10:16 14:7 allegedly 18:4 **allowed** 50:17

allows 18:20 31:13 **amazed** 68:20 69:5 **amended** 13:10 amendment 18:1 **America** 70:8,10 American 52:5 65:22 66:2 **amount** 37:3 51:2 56:8 **Andrea** 47:14 Angels 60:17 61:11,23,25 62:1 announcement 63:1 67:16 announcements 64:9 **annual** 61:20 anonymous 27:9 **answer** 15:20 45:16 anybody 8:7 25:5 28:12 35:17,19 36:12 70:23 **anytime** 28:15 **anyway** 21:11 61:8 apologize 67:21 68:12 **apology** 67:22 **appeal** 30:9 **appear** 46:6 appears 30:3 45:4 applicant 36:11 application 10:21 applications 30:1 appointed 5:2,4 5:6,8,14 **appreciate** 16:9 19:9 39:7,11 42:19 apprehend 26:8 31:16 Apprehension 31:12 apprised 16:18 **approach** 46:15

appropriate 5:12 12:5 22:3 42:18 43:11 63:11,16 64:9 appropriately 16:8 approval 5:18 6:2 approved 17:16 April 13:5,6,10 **area** 27:19 29:4 29:25 31:1 35:1 37:16 41:1 44:16,20 45:18 49:3,9 49:13,14,23,24 49:25 50:22 51:4,4 52:21 53:2,24,25 54:1,15 55:4,8 55:12,20 61:13 **areas** 21:6 38:6 38:7 44:7,19 Arm 38:5 **armed** 32:1 arraigned 37:6 arrangements 36:21 **arrest** 26:10 29:2,14,15 arrested 24:1 arrestees 36:8 **arrests** 29:12 31:18 34:3 **arson** 28:19,20 **arsons** 28:23 29:3 **Arthur** 68:16 **article** 53:17 articles 51:23 as-needed 38:8 **aside** 20:20 **asked** 40:19 68:18 **asking** 9:20,24 16:19 18:20 62:14 **assault** 28:4 assaults 23:3 43:15 assigned 26:6 40:10



	1	1	1
Assignment 31:21	13:1,5 17:10	67:13,23 68:15	Brian 64:22 65:3
<pre>assistant 3:11</pre>	23:20 25:2	69:14 70:14	bribes 9:5
7:24 8:3,23	28:6 30:25	71:1,16,23	bridge 70:3,9
11:2,16,17	33:20 35:24,25	72:2,4	brief 6:23 46:5
12:13 15:6,10	48:3 52:7	belong 25:9 45:2	48:18,20
15:15,23 16:1	59:13 66:12,20	45:24	briefed 15:16
18:16 19:24	68 : 19	belongs 45:22	<pre>briefing 12:5,7</pre>
20:2,7 21:15	background 36:11	beneficial 47:13	12:17 21:25
21:20 22:10,18	backing 42:15	benefit 62:21	briefly 46:12
22:23 24:13	bad 67:12 68:10	benefits 6:13,16	49:2
48:17 56:23	Balinski 25:1	Bernard 13:7	brightly 19:2
57:2 62:7 , 15	bar 30:2	Bernice 67:9	bring 20:6,7
62:19	bars 29:20 51:13	best 64:1 68:12	23:22 33:19
Association	base 41:17	better 10:17,17	48:25
68 : 25	baseball 49:11	27:2 70:2	bringing 6:10
assure 19:20	based 14:22	Bettison 8:11,11	broadcast 9:4,8
52:16	40:24 52:17	58:7,23 59:1	39:19 68:5
ATF 31:10	60 : 25	71:19,22	broadcasts 38:19
attend 52:12	basically 31:14	beyond 18:1	broken 19:4
attendance 8:24	basis 20:22 38:8	19:15	25:24 69:24
attending 64:23	40:17	bifurcated 11:25	Brooks 2:11 5:1
attention 18:24	Bates 69:16,16	Bihail 65:4	5:2
<pre>attorney 13:7,8</pre>	71:8,15,20	Bishop 2:4 4:11	brought 14:23
32:7	beginning 25:8	bit 17:24 36:4	35:5 48:18
Attorney's 32:8	begins 34:22	45:5,16,21	62:7 69:19,21
Atwater 49:5	begun 10:9	55:4	Brown 7:9
58:25	behalf 69:17	blast 58:8	buddy 60:23
audience 63:6	behavior 68:13	blight 12:25	build 37:20 70:3
Audio 38:11	believe 6:8 16:8	blood 32:24	70:9
audit 35:3	36:3 39:18	Blue 55:11	building 33:16
August 13:2	42:20 43:4	board 1:11 4:8	33:23 60:21
73:20	45:9 67:19	4:14 5:15 6:10	bullets 32:24
<pre>authorized 10:22</pre>	Bell 2:6 4:5,7,9	6:25 9:10,14	bump 23:12
21:4,5 54:9	4:13 5:7,23	10:11,23 11:18	bureau 7:11 8:6
auto 32:12	6:1,6,17,22	12:5,7,17	24:9,16,18,24
automatically	7:4,7,21 8:23	14:19 18:20	25:6,10 29:5
40:5	11:7,11,15	22:3,24 24:15	34:13 36:14,17
available 9:22	12:13 14:11	43:18 48:15,20	36:22 37:10
12:4 40:19	15:4 16:4,6	49:1,8 61:9,22	41:7,10
47:6,11	17:3,12,15	63:9,12,14,22	Burton 7:6
AVENUE 1:15	18:6,8 19:24	64:15 67:1	busiest 57:6,9
Avert 38:11,11	20:15 21:12	Bobby 69:16	business 6:3
awarding 6:11	22:6,18 24:11	bodies 63:17,19	11:16 14:6
aware 11 : 18	39:1 41:4 46:4	body 5:14 16:23	59:17 60:7,7
37:16	46:18,23 48:5	BOLINKSI 8:15	61:17 62:7
awareness 43:9	48:13 50:4,14	Bolinski 8:15	63:1
awesome 47:15	51:6,16 53:15	bond 30:13,22	businesses 50:24
aye 5:24,25 6:20	56:6 57:12,21	bottom 19:5	Butler 64:18,19
6:21 72:2,3	59:7,16,22	Boulevard 39:13	65:21 66:5,16
	60:3,6,12	brag 68:9	67:6
B	61:12 62:5,25	break 18:2,13	buy 30:19 35:17
back 11:13,13	66:4,24 67:8	breaking 18:13	_
	I	I	I



	1	I	I
С	casings 32:24	7:16,19,24,25	29:13,20 30:25
Caitlyn 7:13	catalyst 22:2	8:3,4,5,12,24	31:24 32:14
73:6,17	cause 26:9 73:13	9:13,19 10:13	34:3 35:4,20
call 21:18 29:23	causes 57:8	11:3,16,17,21	37:13 38:8,13
34:20 35:1	Ceasefire 38:5,6	12:14,20,21,23	39:23 44:7,18
39:5 40:7 48:2	center 36:18,19	14:9,21 15:6	51:14 52:25
48:3 49:20	37:21 61:21	15:10,15,16,23	53:12,19,19
50:5 55:10	ceremonial 6:11	16:1 18:16	54:10,22 55:2
66:11	6:15	19:5,21,25	55:9 61:4
called 65:23,24	certain 39:25	20:2,7,10 21:1	69:12,20 70:1
calls 10:19 47:4	41:16 44:7	21:15,20 22:10	70:4
cameras 38:14	56:8	22:17,18,23	city's 50:15
Capt 8:15	certainly 16:21	24:3,3,9,13,14	civilian 32:19
captain 8:6,13	18:17,24 20:11	24:15,15 39:15	41:8
8:13,15,17,17	23:18 24:5	39:18,24 40:8	clarification
8:19,19 24:24	69:10	40:21 41:3,9	15:7 21:13
24:25 25:1	CERTIFICATE 73:5	41:18,21,25	22:8 53:17
39:11,12 43:14	certify 73:6,10	42:14,24 43:3	62:12
43:21 46:16,19	73:12 chair 4:9 5:21	43:17 44:4,17	<pre>clarified 6:18 Clark 47:15</pre>
46:19,25 48:5		45:15,20 46:11	
48:9,11 57:22	6:5 7:2 11:6 12:20 15:3	48:13,16,17,19 48:25 49:7	<pre>classified 21:24 classify 33:4,7</pre>
59:8 64:24	16:5 17:5 18:7	50:13,20 51:8	cleaning 57:20
65:4 66:18,22	18:9,17 22:24	51:18,18 52:15	clear 6:14 19:11
67:2	41:20 42:13	53:9,21 54:13	clearance 36:12
Captain's 44:4	44:11 51:17	55:16,24 56:10	clearly 55:4
car 26:5 33:6	52:24,24 56:5	56:16,20,23	Cocks 8:17,17
40:6,16 69:24	59:9,19,20	57:2 58:12	cold 26:3,16
cards 35:24,25	61:3 63:14	61:8 62:7,15	28:3
36:2,7	64:15 69:15	62:19 67:11	Coleman 60:21
care 16:16 36:20 68:14	70:15 71:19,23	chief's 20:25	collaboration
carjacking 32:14	chairman 4:23	22:21	28:2
40:11	17:6 39:3	child 24:5 27:14	collect 32:23
carjackings 23:5	Chairperson 2:6	27:25,25 28:10	come 5:14 14:15
carried 6:2,23	2:7	28:10,11,14,16	22:13 23:18
72:4	challenges 45:10	children 26:24	27:18 28:13
cars 9:6 30:10	Chambers 8:13,13	45:25 46:1	30:19 33:19
40:10,14 49:17	changed 42:8	47:8,16	34:4 35:20
50:1 57:10,11	charge 20:18	chop 32:13	36:14 39:10
57:11 69:23	48:9	Christ 63:5	40:25 41:2
Carter 2:7 4:24	charged 32:7	Church 63:5	44:16 45:22
4:25 20:1,14	54:8	citizen 68:22	58:10 63:9,22
72:1	charging 55:2	citizens 11:9	64:12 66:1
case 25:8 26:3	Charlotte 7:20	33:23 35:16	67:11 68:18,24
38:21 40:10,17	chart 25:7	39:16 52:6	69:9 71:4
40:17	chastised 63:15	58:9 66:9 70:8	Comerica 54:16
cases 26:1,16	check 33:19	70:12	comes 34:20 35:17 36:8
27:12,18 28:3	checked 33:21 checks 36:11,12	city 5:9,10,11 5:16 10:23	35:17 36:8 43:19
28:13 32:6,10	Chene 49:5, 5, 13	14:2,7 23:21	43:19 coming 7:10 8:25
32:14,14	50:6,22	23:22 24:1	16:15 33:17
cash 30:10	chief 3:10,11	25:16 29:1,8	53:4 54:22
		20.10 20.10	



58:6,21 61:8 66:19 68:4 70:16,22 command 24:17 commander 8:6,9 8:9,11,11,20 8:20 15:5 16:2 24:22,22 43:16 58:7,23 59:1 65:3,3,7 67:6 71:19,20,22 commands 35:4 37:9 **commend** 18:14 39:3 57:21 69:7 **comment** 46:5 61:23 69:2 comments 17:4,4 21:13 46:4 48:7 58:15 61:13 63:11 64:7,13 69:11 69:15 commercial 32:12 commission 4:9 4:15 10:24,25 12:23 13:2,11 14:8 16:9,12 16:18 17:2 20:19 52:24 62:8 73:20 commissioned 59:9 commissioner 2:3 2:4,5,8,9,10 2:11 4:5,7,11 4:13,13,15,16 4:16,18,18,20 4:20,22,22,24 4:24 5:1,1,3,3 5:5,5,7,20,22 5:23 6:1,4,5,6 6:7,9,17,17,22 7:4,6,6,7,21 8:23 10:9 11:6 11:7,8,11,12 11:14,15 12:13 12:14,18,19 14:11,12 15:3 15:4,6,11,21 15:24 16:3,4,5

16:6,7,13 17:3 17:3,5,12,14 17:15,22 18:6 18:7,8,9,10,14 19:24 20:1,14 20:15,16 21:12 21:14 22:5,6,6 22:7,17,18 24:11 39:1,1,2 39:16,22 40:1 40:20 41:3,4,5 41:12,19,20 42:13,25 43:6 43:20,24 44:9 44:11 45:4,13 45:18 46:3,4,5 46:18,23 48:5 48:8,12,13 50:4,14 51:6 51:16,17 53:5 53:13,15,15,16 54:6 55:14,21 56:4,5,6,7,12 56:19,22 57:8 57:12,14,16,16 57:18,19,21 58:5 59:6,7,16 59:19,22 60:1 60:3,6,12,14 61:12,14,15,19 62:5,6,17,24 62:25 64:16 65:19 66:4,4,5 66:24 67:8,10 67:13,23 68:15 69:14 70:13,14 70:14,15,25 71:1,1,9,16,18 71:23,25 72:1 72:2,4 commissioners 1:11 2:1 5:8 5:18 41:4 51:16 60:9,22 60:23 61:25 64:5 67:21 69:15 71:3,17 committed 19:7 committee 10:11 20:22 59:18,20 **common** 27:14 communicate

12:11communicating 12:10 60:3 communication 37:1 60:9 63:6 70:19 71:6 communications 49:21 communities 60:18 community 26:23 39:11 45:5 60:25 61:2 63:3 64:20 65:8,17,21,25 68:25 70:2,4 70:17,24 71:12 community-based 61:2 64:9 companies 13:15 14:15,20 17:19 21:16,16,21,23 22:1 35:16 56:8 57:3,4 69:23 **company** 10:23 14:12 22:9 56:14 compared 53:18complain 66:21 complaining 13:14 65:18 66:17,22 complaints 13:12 31:23 44:13 **complex** 18:23 22:15 compliment 65:20 complimenting 65:6 Compliments 59:1 computer-aided 73:9 computers 32:5 concern 9:24 64:14 67:3 concerned 64:2 69:1 concerns 9:23 20:23 63:12 65:9 concluded 72:6

Page 4

conclusion 10:1 **conduct** 14:4,5 31:5 conducting 12:1 15:8,9 25:12 Conference 61:21 conferences 27:7 confidence 19:25 25:11 confine 63:16 congested 59:11 conjunction 14:24 29:10 **connect** 51:21 connection 7:8 9:5 consent 35:6 **consist** 25:23 34:18 consisted 28:20 consistent 37:7 consists 27:11 29:6 31:2,8 32:3,17 conspiracy 29:8 constitutional 37:7 constructed 10:11 construction 35:13 37:19 **contact** 15:22,25 20:9,9 50:7 64:15 contacted 50:1 contacting 20:11 contingent 31:3 **continue** 10:15 18:21 22:11,25 35:7 63:19 67**:**4 continuing 21:17 21:18 51:15 continuity 49:8 **contract** 17:16 control 8:14 33:12,19,25 34:1,21 conversation 19:9 65:22 conversations 69:18



convey 63:24 69:10
convicted 14:4
51:25
<pre>coordinate 27:7 coordinated 58:3</pre>
copy 10:21 13:6
corralled 60:19
correct 15:10
17:8 18:6 56:9
73:10 correcting 19:7
correction 6:7,8
corruption 14:7
69 : 20
cost 36:5 council 63:18
64:20 69:12
Councilman 68:17
69:11
counsel 73:12
country 70:17,20 71:12
county 70:21
73:3,19
couple 13:1
17:10 38:14 50:9 51:23
course 13:10
14:4 44:12,14
65:14 66:16
court 7:13 30:14 30:23 33:18
36:18,18,24,25
36:25 73:5
courts 30:8
cover 11:4 22:22 covered 69:6
covering 34:19
59:3
covers 44:19
Cox 24:24 39:11 43:14,21
CPS 28:16
Craig 7:25 12:21
Crawford 2:5
4:20,21 12:18 12:19 15:5
17:5,14,22
18:11,15 21:14
22:5 42:13,25
43:6,16,20,24

44:9 48:8,12 51:17 53:5,13 57:14,18 59:19 60:1 70:13,14 70:15 71:9 **Craword** 14:12 **create** 10:16 credentials 54:20 **crew** 29:18 crews 29:7,9 crime 22:21,25 23:1,22 24:23 27:5,6 29:5 31:6 32:9,15 32:16,17,20,20 32:25 33:3,5 34:3,13,20 35:15,17 37:11 37:12,16,21,24 40:9 41:16 crimes 8:18,21 24:23 25:15 27:19,19 32:1 32:5,16 40:4,4 41:22 45:25 criminal 14:3,5 criminal-based 20:21 criminality 25:14 critical 26:5 37:22 criticism 63:10 63:13 CSR-8887 73:17 **current** 10:22 30:3 36:9 currently 27:13 curtail 56:2 Cushingberry 68:17 69:12 **cushion** 36:5 **custody** 24:7 26:13 28:9 29:3,24 36:20 customer 35:11 35:15 **cut** 64:12 cyber 32:1,9 D

D.C8:8 12:6 24:2 50:10 57:22 darn 68:7 data 41:17 database 33:10 37:25 41:15 date 27:24 **dating** 27:14 David 24:15 **Davis** 69:16 **day** 14:8 19:14 19:14,14,18,18 32:19 33:17 40:14,24 43:2 47:21,21 53:23 53:24 days 11:20 32:19 42:22 43:4 51:23 59:24 60:13 DDC 35:23 **DEA** 29:10 **deal** 38:16 40:15 46:21 47:1,21 49:15 68:23 dealers 29:9 dealing 11:4 12:25 14:21 27:3 46:14 47:23 66:7 70:6 **deals** 40:3 **dealt**19:1 dear 67:25 68:1 **death** 6:12 **deaths** 25:18,19 decided 36:3 deck 35:11 decomposition 26:19 decrease 23:1 defenses 10:6 **define** 21:20 definitely 47:6 **delay** 42:2 department 6:10 9:15,16,23 10:4 11:25 16:11 17:10 19:8 21:16 23:2 24:17

25:7,12 27:1 28:24 30:7 32:2 35:10 45:8,10 50:8 53:6 54:10,14 56:1,25 57:7 68:8,22 69:7 70:24 71:5 department's 21:18 departments 69:4 70:19 71:13 depend 40:10 **Deputy** 8:4,5 24:3,3,8,14,15 39:15,18,24 40:8,21 41:9 41:18,25 42:24 43:3,17 44:4 44:17 45:15,20 48:13,16,19,25 49:7 50:13,20 51:8,18 52:15 53:9,21 54:13 55:16,24 56:10 56:16,20 58:12 **Derek** 2:9 5:3 descriptions 37:17 designated 56:9 **desk** 33:25 34:1 34:21 35:15 detail 9:21 49:20 detailed 37:8 45:16 **details** 12:16 15:12detainees 36:21 detective 24:9 24:16,18 25:10 29:5 34:13 36:13,17,22,23 37:23 64:22 65:6 detective's 8:5 detectives 26:16 27:2,15 28:6 28:24 32:21 34:18 35:1 40:9,22,25 47:12,20



Detention 36:18 36:19 determination 30:14,24 33:8 **Detroit** 1:11,14 1:16 4:1 5:9 5:11,12,16 9:4 11:12,13 23:2 23:11,22 24:1 24:16 25:12,16 31:12,20,24 35:20 36:10,16 36:18,19 39:14 44:13 51:14 52:13,25 53:12 53:18 54:7,10 54:14,16 59:2 59:10 62:2 69:12,25 70:4 **devoted** 43:22 Dewaelsche 2:10 5:5,6 6:5,7,9 16:13 41:5,12 41:19 61:15,19 dialogue 14:14 63:18 67:1 difference 53:6 53:8,11 different 12:2 14:8,8,8,9,9 31:5 38:9,17 50:24 54:12 differently 19:1 **digit** 26:11 direction 7:10 **directly** 12:11 disappointed 68:2 discipline 19:23 **discomp** 26:18 discount 47:4 **discuss** 10:12 12:3 discussed 17:1 discussion 5:24 6:6,20 67:12 71:4 discussions 12:6 68:18 disparagement 52:17 disparaging

58:15 disparity 49:2 **dispatch** 31:15 dispatches 34:21 dispensaries 44:14 45:6 displayed 67:20 disposition 23:17 disproportionate 49:6 disseminate 35:10 **Dist**2:3,4,5,6,7 2:8 **distinct** 70:5 distributed 37:15 **district** 4:9,17 4:19,21,23,25 5:11 44:12,12 62:2 71:1 **Divers** 68:16,16 **divided** 49:22 divisions 24:23 **Dix** 40:13 **DNA**26:21 28:6 doing 7:13 20:21 23:14 32:4 44:21 55:25 57:22 60:18,20 61:17 63:23,23 65:7,13,13 66:18 **dollars** 54:8 55:2,3,5,6 domestic 27:11 27:16,18 43:8 43:8,10,19,23 44:2,6 doors 34:16 dot 11:12,13 **doubt** 7:9 downtown 8:7 48:24 49:6,9 49:14,24 50:6 50:15 51:12 52:13,19 53:2 53:18,23,25 54:15 55:8,11 55:20 57:7,23 58:4,21 59:8

59:11 69:24 **DP08**10:8 **DPD** 8:1 15:8,11 15:22,25 16:1 31:3 33:14 42:23 **DPD's** 39:24 Drake 7:16,16,19 **driving** 56:2 **drug** 25:19 29:9 31:7 **drugs** 30:19 33:17 due 13:22 **duly** 73:7 **dumping** 31:22 **dust** 41:2 Е **e-mail** 39:6 58:8 59:13 61:22 62:13,16 **eager** 9:17 earlier 21:3 64:23 **early** 38:8 42:11 59:12 **east** 52:19 57:12 57:14 **easy** 40:2 54:21 **echo** 18:10 economic 62:20 Edgar 2:4 4:11 4:18 **educate** 40:2 efficacy 6:10 efficient 34:11 effort 34:8 54:13 **egress** 53:3 **either** 26:18 28:13 31:15 39:20 73:13 **Elaine** 24:25 46:19 **elected** 5:14 electric 31:22 eliminated 34:9 Elizabeth 2:11 5:1 **Elmwood** 63:5 **embedded** 27:6

embracing 47:17 emergency 50:25 emerging 37:12 employees 41:6 60:16 empowers 68:23 encounter 70:11 encourage 52:16 60:15 encouraging 58:22 **enforce** 54:5 enforcement 29:21 38:5 53:7,12 54:16 58:19 enforcing 49:14 54:18 55:24 **engage** 29:22 30:21 enormious 51:2 **ensure** 18:18 25:11 35:5 49:7 50:25 55:1 enter 33:10 entered 28:23 entertain 71:24 entertaining 14:14 entire 5:8 11:21 21:4,6 49:4,10 especially 44:15 45:6 46:1 50:21 71:4 essentially 61:4 establish 26:9 71:21 established 34:17 establishing 55:16 establishments 29:21 Eva 2:10 5:5 evade 22:14 **event** 51:9 52:5 52:17 58:11 61:20 73:13 **events** 50:15 52:10 53:24 everybody 36:8



58:18 evidence 21:5 32:18,23,25 33:5,14,15,17 38:12,18 **evolve** 44:3 **exact** 51:11 **exactly** 14:13 59:4 **examine** 10:15 example 23:8 60:19 **exceed** 36:4 **excellent** 33:16 66:11,15 excessive 37:2 **excused** 7:5 **executive** 11:21 **exist** 21:7 **expand** 32:9 **expected** 58:16 experience 22:25 43:4,5 66:13 **expires** 73:20 **explain** 28:17 express 69:9 **extent** 10:15,24 F **face** 24:19 **Facebook** 32:6 **facets** 15:19 **fact**13:5 14:6 14:19 17:9 19:20 62:21 70:20

fairly 32:2 **fall** 68:11 **fallen** 6:11 falls 25:15 29:4 **familiar** 21:22 families 6:13 26:21,25 27:3 46:9,14,15 47:12 **family** 8:2 46:6 46:21 47:23,25 **far** 4:15 7:24 14:20 29:2 50:7 51:7 **fast** 43:4,4 fatal 26:3,4,5

fatalities 71:11 father 47:4 48:2 **favor** 5:24 6:20 72:2 **FBI** 9:8,15 14:24 15:7 31:9,11 **federal** 11:24 12:9,24,25 15:12 31:5,7 51:25 **feds** 15:14,22,25 **feel** 20:3 64:5 68:6 **felon** 31:20 **felony** 31:24 **felt** 36:6 67:12 **fenced** 54:19 fiduciary 16:22 **file** 33:9 **finally** 10:19 16:15 **find** 21:5 31:19 34:11 62:13 66:11 **finding** 14:19 fine 43:24 **finger** 32:23 fingerprint 35:24 40:7,18 fingerprinted 36:9,14 fingerprints 33:9,11 40:3,5 41:13,15 fire 28:21,24 firearms 31:9 35:19,20 firefighters 28:21 **fires** 29:1 **first** 6:8 8:4 16:12 24:21 25:14 27:11 29:6 64:23 Fitzgerald 24:3 **five** 39:7 56:13 **fix** 16:16 flabbergasted 66:14 **flag** 54:25 **floor** 35:23 37:18,20

flyers 27:8 **focus** 52:20 **fold** 24:19 **folks** 59:4 **follow** 34:16 **follow-up** 42:19 **followed** 18:19 following 6:12 70:21 follows 7:17 **football** 49:12 51:11 force 8:16 25:1 25:25 26:2 31:1,8,11,11 31:13,15 32:11 45:23,25 60:8 60:12 **forces** 31:3,4 45:22 **Ford** 61:21 forecoming 12:16 forfeiture 30:6 30:6 **forgive** 56:16 **form** 63:20 67:5 73:9 **formal** 10:24 14:13 43:18 formality 7:23 formally 15:1 27:13 **formed** 20:22 forms 27:17 **forth** 14:23 20:6 20:7 68:22,24 69:3 **forward** 5:17 9:1 11:5 12:17 14:17 15:2 16:23 24:18 48:15 64:12 **found** 26:18 38:14 47:13 54:24 Foundation 59:2 **founder** 47:9,15 **Fountain** 64:22 65:6 **four** 27:20 29:7 32:3 56:13 **fourth** 37:20

Page 7

framed 12:23 Franklin 8:21 25:2 **fraud** 14:3,5 32:14 fraudulently 30:4 Fredia 64:19 **free** 51:7,10,10 58:2 **freedom** 65:23,24 **freely** 58:14 Friday 33:24 **front** 22:25 27:25 **Fugitive** 31:12 31:23 **fulfill** 16:22 **full**10:5 51:13 60:16 **further** 6:19 73:12 **future** 17:24 **FYI** 59:9 G Gail 7:10 gain 70:9 gambling 29:19 game 51:11 54:7 games 49:12,12 49:12 gang 31:8 38:3,4 38:9 gangs 31:7 **gaps** 10:10,12 20:19 21:3,7 **garage** 40:14 58:13 garages 54:3 **Garza** 2:10 5:6 gas 29:20 **General** 31:21 General's 32:7 generates 53:20 **George** 68:17 69:11 getting 18:25 26:12 28:5,8

26:12 28:5,8 29:3 46:22 47:20 give 11:3 36:15



37:9,24 46:14 47:2,6 48:3 49:21 63:7 69:3 given 4:12 16:10 35:8 53:24 62:9 **giving** 43:21 **glad** 50:4,8,18 50:18 58:1 66:5,25 67:4 **glimpse** 46:14 **go**12:16 14:17 15:2,5 16:23 19:15 20:5,10 30:8,23,24 32:20,22 33:6 34:5,16,25 40:24 41:15,16 41:18,25 49:25 53:22 56:13 69:2 **goal** 53:4 goes 18:1 34:22 38:13 49:22 62:10 going 4:10,14 5:12,17 11:20 15:2,17 16:24 16:24,25,25 18:4,13 19:2 22:11 25:4 33:17 47:9,10 47:11 50:11,23 51:10,24 52:10 59:2,21 60:20 60:25 61:5,6 61:16 63:14 64:11 65:22 66:10,19 67:7 68:3 71:18 good 4:5,6 11:17 22:23,24 23:1 23:12,15,23 24:14 26:12 42:16 57:1 64:18 66:8,9 67:5,9 68:7,16 gov 11:13 government 11:13 12:24 graffiti 31:23

great 39:3 41:21 44:11 51:9 66:18 68:23 green 45:11 55:10 Greenlight 37:18 **group** 31:2 70:5 groups 31:8 47:18 51:5 growing 46:9 50:15 growth 52:25 guess 29:23 39:9 54:7 quest 64:21 guilty 19:20 guns 33:18 guys 66:11 н hairs 22:11 **Hall** 8:4 24:3 48:19,25 49:7 50:13,20 51:8 52:15 53:9,21 54:13 55:16,24 56:10,16,20 58:12 Halloween 60:8 60:12 **hand** 49:1 **handle** 19:2 29:12 31:22 32:12 34:23 handled 27:15,16 32:6 33:14 handles 25:25 26:5 27:12 29:18 31:25 handling 7:15 hanging 51:3 happen 62:10 67:15,18 happening 65:10 happy 16:14 24:6 hard 23:1,22 24:2,4 26:20 Hayes 8:21 25:2 head 7:11 26:6 Headquarters 1:14 63:3 healthy 23:25

hear 46:25 64:10 67:5 69:18 heard 23:24 68:19 70:23 **hearing** 19:21 30:14,23 **heavily** 59:11 held 19:4,21 40:12 **hellbent** 18:12 help 10:2,16 27:7 Hicks 6:25 7:2,5 7:8 20:15,16 21:13 60:4,5,8 60:11,14 61:14 high 34:17 41:14 highest 44:13 historically 51:18,19 52:2 **history** 36:10,15 36:16 46:10 **hits** 28:6 **hoc** 10:11 20:22 59:17,20 hockey 49:12 hold 18:21 37:5 64:13 66:12 70:13 holding 37:2 **home** 40:6,20 homicide 8:19 23:14 24:25 25:14,15,17,20 25:23,25 26:1 26:3,4,6,8,11 26:24,25 27:7 34:25 35:1 41:15 46:8,13 46:16,20 48:9 homicides 23:12 23:14 25:16 38:6 40:4 hope 10:15 20:24 63:11 64:3 66:1 67:22 68:4 hopefully 59:24 Hotel 50:24 hour 42:2 hours 32:19 34:19 37:6

42:21 47:14 house 23:25 36:23 housed 33:15 35:11,22 **HR** 7:11 human 45:19 46:1 70:1 hurry 68:13 hyphen 11:14 Ι identifiable 54:21 identification 27:22 35:22 38:24 identified 21:1 21:22 22:2 26:12 28:8 identify 20:19 26:20,22 33:4 36:7 37:12 46:17,20 56:1 **identity** 32:10 ignorance 56:17 **illegal** 9:6 29:18,19 49:15 50:21 **images** 38:19 immediately 14:2 impartial 25:13 impeccable 19:16 important 43:25 43:25 71:6 impropriety 48:23 inappropriate 64:6,11 **inaudible** 48:15 59:14 **incident** 51:10 67:14 incidents 37:22 51:13 71:10 **include** 45:14,19 **included** 43:14 43:16 increase 23:14 independent 15:13 **indicate** 20:17



43:10 indicated 11:23 21:24 indicates 6:9 indicating 9:4 36:16 indication 30:4 30:11 38:8 indictments 31:7 individual 10:4 13:14 34:12 41:1 70:5 individuals 13:13 18:4 27:6 28:8 31:14 32:3 38:1,15 51:25 54:20,23 56:1 58:21 63:9 **indoor** 40:13 **infant** 25:18 informally 64:5 information 9:10 9:11,12,25 10:2,13 11:22 12:4,9 13:19 15:17 16:18,20 16:21 17:7,17 17:20 20:6,8 20:17 22:16 27:8 38:1,23 39:19 46:22 47:2,5,7 48:3 48:4,6,21 50:2 53:22 58:24 61:18,22 62:20 69:4,11 ingress 53:3 **injuries** 28:16 inquired 6:9 inquires 20:21 inquiring 6:14 **inquiry** 6:12 **insofar** 9:15 inspections 29:20 30:3 instruction 4:14 insurance 32:14 35:16 integrity 12:20 58:19 Intel 37:24

intelligence 37:11,22,23 38:3 intelligent 67:19 **intended** 13:21 interact 67:4 interaction 48:14 interactions 70:6 interest 5:15 interested 73:13 **internal** 8:6,14 9:15,17,22 12:1 20:9,12 internet 32:5 introduce 6:25 8:1,8 24:20,22 introduces 7:17 introduction 7:23 invaluable 38:22 invasion 40:6 invasions 40:20 investigate 25:16 28:22,25 31:21 35:4 investigated 26:17 investigates 28:11,18 investigation 9:9,16,18,22 10:1 11:24,25 12:1,3,9,12,21 13:1,3,25 14:24,25 15:8 15:9,12,18 18:23,25 19:3 21:19,22,24 22:12,13,15 25:13 38:2 46:8 51:22 52:2 investigations 15:19 20:18 21:9 31:6 investigative 9:14 25:18 31:10 33:25 34:2 35:2

investigator 7:16,19,20 20:10 investigators 28:21 Invocation 4:12 **involve** 30:10 **involved** 21:23 22:9,19,20 61:25 62:11 involvement 10:7 38:9 **involves** 65:10 involving 9:2 14:13 51:22 71:12 **issue** 14:21 18:5 19:11,12 39:5 41:22 51:6 52:3 **issues** 10:2 11:4 11:18 12:2 16:13 19:10 35:5 37:2 48:19 50:16 51:9 it'd43:11 item 6:3 11:16 59:17 61:15 items 30:12 J **James** 3:11 7:25 **January** 55:18 **jewelry** 30:11 **job** 19:18 33:16 57:23 66:15,18 69:8 **John** 44:20 **Johns** 29:24 **join** 24:18 39:10 **joined** 25:3 joint 26:2 31:10 54:13 **Jones** 7:20 judge 30:14 judgment 35:6 juvenile 26:1 κ **keep** 30:16 33:20 36:1,7 51:15

Page 9

59:15 Ken 8:15 25:1 **Kenyatta** 56:24 57:2 **kin** 46:21 47:1 48:1 **kind** 21:10 37:1 38:25 51:3 60:23 69:10 kit 42:2 43:1 kits 28:4 41:23 41:23 42:3,6,9 42:11,19 **knew** 14:24 **knock** 34:16 **know** 5:10 7:23 11:9 12:10 15:15,20 16:10 16:11,23 18:24 19:6,13,14,18 21:25 22:14 23:6 27:24 37:8 39:20 41:14 43:11,25 44:1 45:7 46:8 46:9,12 47:21 50:7,10 51:24 54:2,24 55:6 55:25 56:7,17 56:19 57:24,25 59:4 62:9,13 62:21 65:8,10 66:6,9,19,21 67:2,11,13,18 68:18 70:11,11 71:9 knowledge 68:23 **known** 27:23 38:4 62:3 L **lab** 42:3 lack 70:18 larcenies 49:16 large 5:10 25:6 26:11 29:9 51:5 **late** 13:6 68:3 **lately** 38:19 **latent** 33:3,7,7 **laugh** 68:2 **law**19:4 45:8



51:25 **lead** 31:16,18 **learned** 11:22 **left** 4:15 7:24 **legal** 13:9,18 45:9 legitimate 49:9 **let's** 19:19 22:20 **letter** 36:15 LeValley 8:5 24:2,9,14,16 39:15,18,24 40:8,21 41:9 41:18,25 42:24 43:3,17 44:4 44:17 45:15,20 48:16 **level** 35:7 41:14 44:24 **levels** 41:16 liaison 8:12 20:25 26:15,25 36:18,25 68:17 **liberty** 12:3,10 **license** 29:25 **licensed** 45:3 licenses 30:2,3 licensing 45:1,9 lieutenant 8:21 25:2,3 **lift** 32:23 33:6 lifting 33:5 **light** 18:25 19:1 45:11 **lighted** 54:19 Lights 55:11,11 **liked** 45:8 **likelihood** 34:15 **limited** 54:2 **Linda** 13:7 **line** 19:5 23:18 Lions 54:7,15,16 **liquor** 29:19,25 30:2 **Lisa** 2:7 4:24 **list**10:22 17:10 17:12 20:23 21:4,6 **listed** 17:17 **little** 36:4 45:16,21 55:4

57:25 **live** 27:15 57:14 **lives** 35:19 **lobbyist** 13:15 **local** 9:4 location 30:19 35:23 39:21 40:14 locations 37:18 38:13 44:25 45:1 61:5,6 **long** 48:10 longer 36:2 longstanding 16:14 **look** 17:22 20:19 49:17 52:9 looked 39:20 63:17 **looking** 21:3,8 48:15 **loss** 27:3 67:1 **lost** 64:24 66:18 **lot** 18:25 25:6 25:21,25 26:16 27:1,2 28:5,13 29:2,7,10 31:7 32:1,4 35:5 36:1 37:8,25 38:19 44:19 45:25 47:2 51:4,11,12,12 54:17 55:3,7 55:15 65:15 69:1,3 **lots** 54:3, 12, 12 54:18 55:22 **loved** 27:4 47:5 **luncheon** 61:17 61:17 М **M**64:19 **M-I**11:12 **ma'am** 53:13 56:4 64:17 66:24 67:8,23,24 68:15 maintain 34:1 35:7,10 58:18 **major** 8:17,21

29:4,6,6,16 30:1,5 32:16 32:20 34:3 40:4 44:16 45:21 50:22 making 16:23 **Mallett** 7:6 **man** 47:3 **manage** 25:22 management 18:18 19:7 35:9,21 39:13 managing 34:4 Mancini 7:13 73:6,17 **manner** 14:17 41:24 63:15 Marathon 51:7,10 marijuana 44:14 44:25 45:6 **marks** 68:10 **Marlon** 24:22 **married** 27:12 47:3 **Marriott** 50:24 58:12,13 Marshals 31:13 **match** 36:9 material 9:15 25:6 **matter** 9:21 10:20 13:4 17:9 67:3 70:20 **mayor** 10:12 14:10 24:2 45:8 61:7 **mayor's** 62:1 **MDOC** 36:11 **mean** 19:4 22:11 48:1 66:13 69:23 means 23:9 73:9 **media** 7:12 9:9 9:23 10:6,20 11:19 18:24 38:20 43:7 48:21 49:2,4 50:3 51:20 70:21 **medical** 44:14,25 45:6

meet 59:23,24 meeting 1:12 4:8 5:19 9:1 43:18 46:7 59:21 62:8 63:1,3 64:21 72:6 73:7 meetings 11:14 64:24 **member** 46:21 **members** 8:1 10:4 71:3,12 **men** 23:2 51:14 mentioned 15:7 **merits** 14:23 **met** 46:11 **methods** 28:14 **Metro** 61:16,24 **mic** 46:23 63:21 64:12 Michael 8:13 Michigan 1:16 4:1 45:24 73:1 73:19 **mid** 52:19 middle 34:16 **mile** 44:15,15,20 **miles** 8:19,19 24:25 39:12 46:16,19,20,25 48:11 **mind** 59:15 66:10 minister's 67:17 **minutes** 6:2,20 63:7 68:14 mirroring 61:7 misconduct 19:3 19:12 missing 23:24 26:14,15,16 **mission** 25:10,11 moms 46:11,11 Monday 33:24 **money** 33:17 62:11 **monitor** 37:17 38:4 monitored 63:15 **month** 43:9,13 **monthly** 64:21 **months** 13:1 17:10 48:11



24:23 25:15

Moore 2:8 4:22 4:23 5:22 6:4 11:6,8,12 15:3 15:6,11,21,24 16:3 18:7,9 22:6,7,17 39:2 39:16,22 40:1 40:20 41:3 53:15,16 54:6 55:14,21 56:4 57:8,16,19 58:5 59:6 62:6 62:17,24 65:19 71:18,25 Moorish 69:17 70:3,7,10,17 70:24 71:12 mother 47:4 48:2 mothers 26:24 47:8,15,17 motion 6:1,22 71:24 72:4 Mounsey 65:4 67:7
<pre>move 5:17,20 9:1 11:5 12:17 22:20 25:4 39:23 67:6 moved 5:23 6:4 6:19 33:14 35:12 39:13 66:22 72:1 moving 61:4 MSP 26:2 Muhammad 65:4 66:13 multi-victim 26:1 multiple 53:24 municipal 53:7 Murdered 26:24 47:8,16 museum 65:23 66:3</pre>
Myers 56:24 57:1 57:2,10
N
name 24:19 37:24 46:18 63:7 64:18 69:16 named 14:12

names 17:8 36:10 narcotic 29:14 30:7 narcotics 29:13 30:12 51:24 **nation** 70:7 **national** 41:15 41:17 nationwide 33:10 **nature** 62:12 68**:**7 **near** 27:17 necessary 16:21 58:25 **need** 5:9 7:22 12:11 13:22,23 17:25,25 21:10 21:25,25 32:22 33:18 34:5 36:1 38:1 50:25 53:2,7 55:11 60:7 **needed** 16:25 38:15 **needs** 36:12 47:25 negative 24:6 neighborhood 8:4 8:12 30:20 **neither** 73:12 **never** 13:20 47:3 62:12 67:15,15 67:18 70:22 nevertheless 67:17 **new** 25:3 26:25 31:18 32:2 60:6 65:1,2 **news** 9:4 13:9 22:24 23:23 38:20 69:20 newspaper 68:5 **night** 7:15 9:3 34:10,12,17,21 50:5 60:17 61:11,23 62:1 62:1 **non-DPD** 8:25 **non-sworn** 41:11 **nonfatal** 23:4,8 31:25 38:6 **normal** 21:9

normally 7:16 35:11 northwest 44:13 Notary 73:5,18 **note** 43:9 62:6 **notes** 73:11 **Notice** 39:7 **noticed** 38:18 notifications 34:2 **notified** 39:17 39:17 November 63:4 **NPO** 58:6 **nuisance** 30:17 30:20 **number** 11:18 12:2 19:13 20:8,12 23:15 31:2 37:25 42:4 49:21,22 56:12,17 57:3 57:11 60:17,19 **numbers** 23:6,13 23:18,20,20 25:21,23 0 obscenity 29:18 observation 40:18 **observed** 28:16 **obtain** 26:8 obtained 9:13 30:4,12 obviously 7:9 occur 34:14 53:18 occurred 13:1 34:21 71:11 occurrence 37:5 occurring 70:16 occurs 46:16 **OCI** 60:18 **October** 1:13 4:2 6:2 61:20 63:2 64:20 65:5 66:2 **offended** 64:3 **offer** 29:22 **offered** 65:25 office 3:10 20:9

20:25 28:3,7 32:8,8 35:3 47:10,11 59:13 62:1 officer 7:14 19:3 56:23 57:1,10 officers 6:11,16 9:3,5,20 10:5 10:14 12:22,24 14:22 19:12,13 19:17,20 29:14 31:4 33:18 36:19,24 37:15 41:7 45:23 65:10 66:6,17 68:6 69:8 **offline** 62:23 **oh** 6:5 43:16 57:19 okay 8:2 16:3 17:22 20:14 22:5 37:8 40:3 41:12 45:13 46:3 48:12 56:21 57:19 58:22 59:18 62:19,24 **old**23:24 60:7 62:6 63:1,21 **older** 36:1 once 12:4 16:16 17:15 22:1 43:12,12 44:22 45:3,11 46:13 46:16,20 59:16 one's 14:4 ones 21:19,21 45:2 47:5 57:25 ongoing 9:8 online 39:21,22 open 66:10 opening 4:10 **operate** 60:20 61:1 operating 64:14 operation 34:6 44:22 operations 29:22 30:18 31:6 33:25 34:2



35:2 44:20 **opposed** 6:1,22 **Oral** 63:6 **orange** 54:24 **order** 25:7 47:12 50:2 **ordered** 58:7 ordinary 51:9 organization 18:19 organizations 61:2,25 organized 24:23 29:5 31:6 32:13,16 **outlined** 12:15 outside 45:16 57:7 outstanding 48:14 57:23 59:6 65:7,13 66:23 overdoses 25:19 **overlap** 15:19 overlooked 7:16 oversees 24:23 24:24,25 25:1 56:24 oversight 9:10 9:14 **overview** 37:10 Oxendine 7:11 Ρ **p.m**4:3 34:19 63:2,4 66:2 72:6 packages 36:24 37:13 packet 17:18 49:1 paid10:24 13:15 **pair** 31:4 **palinal** 16:10 19:10,12 **Palmer** 44:16 paragraph 6:8 **parents** 26:21 park 44:16 49:5 49:13 50:6,10 50:17,18,22 52:13,14 54:4

54:22 55:3 63:5 **parked** 49:17 50:21 **parking** 49:15 50:11,16 51:7 53:7,7,10,11 54:2,3,5,8,12 54:16,17 55:4 55:15,19,23 58:1,9,10,13 58:13,14,16,16 58:19 59:3,5 59:11,16 part 9:8 13:3,25 20:3 26:4 28:19 29:5,11 30:5 32:11,16 33:12 35:3,9 36:17,22 38:3 53:19 participate 60:10,24 participation 60:16 particular 49:19 58:10 particularly 11:19 52:4 **parties** 64:2 **partner** 31:10 38:20 47:8 partnered 31:9 partnering 47:19 partners 31:5 54:15 partnership 27:5 31:13 partnerships 26:23 party 64:8 73:13 pass 24:21 **passed** 25:7 **path** 63:20 patrol 29:14 patrolling 56:2 **patrons** 51:12 55:1 **patterns** 37:12 37:16 patting 23:19 **pay** 6:13,15

50:11 **paying** 55:5 pending 20:18 **people** 7:17 12:11 18:21 23:7,9,9 26:17 26:22 27:9 29:3 30:18 31:15,17 34:4 34:12 37:2 39:7 42:15,17 51:3 52:5,9,12 52:23 53:1,3,4 53:7 54:1,3,7 55:1 61:3 68:24 69:1 70:6 **perceive** 52:11 percent 23:3,4,5 23:5,13 perception 52:11 Periodic 10:1 periodically 9:25 permanent 6:11 37:21 Permission 58:14 **permit** 14:3 permits 30:2 perpetrator 24:1 **person** 5:15 18:12 20:4 26:16 27:22 30:11,25 33:8 40:12,16 46:22 47:1 65:1,2 personal 66:13 66:13 personnel 36:23 persons 26:14,15 **Petty** 8:7 57:22 59:8 **phones** 32:5 photographs 32:25 **pick** 50:1 piece 29:17 33:3 35:2,21 50:20 **pieces** 33:15,21 **placard** 55:15 place 16:15 21:9 34:9 35:8,14

39:23 40:5 49:11 52:22 55:17 66:7 **plant** 22:12 **play**18:20 19:19 **please** 11:8 63:7 68:1 pleased 15:1 65:16 69:10 **plus** 52:7 **PM**1:13 point 11:1 12:4 15:7,22,24 20:24 22:1,4,7 22:22 28:20 42:5,8 45:10 51:1 53:17 61:5 **police** 1:11 4:8 4:15 8:5 9:4 9:13 10:7,10 10:23 11:13,25 14:9 23:2 24:16 25:12 28:22,24 54:10 54:14 55:8 56:1 57:6 64:20 65:10,15 66:17 68:8 69:1,21,23 70:6,9,11,19 70:24 71:13 **POLICE'S** 3:10 policies 16:24 **policy** 6:11 16:23 17:23 18:1,3,5 political 64:8 67:10,16 **positive** 38:24 positively 36:7 **post** 30:13 posted 17:13 posthumously 62:9 posting 13:8 potentially 48:22 **prayer** 4:11 precinct 8:10 20:5,10 26:15 27:15 29:14



quorum 7:3

35:12,13,14 37:15 38:10 39:8,10 40:22 44:21 49:24 56:8,9,13,14 56:15 57:5,6,9 57:17 63:4 64:20 65:5 66:6 precincts 25:24 37:14 44:18 57:3,5,20 preliminary 12:6 premature 22:4 prepared 23:16 prerequisite 39:9 presence 55:8 presentation 13:5 24:8 37:8 39:3 41:21 42:14 43:18,22 44:12 48:18,20 68:20 69:3 presentations 42:17 presented 68:21 preserve 32:23 president 64:19 66:24,25 68:25 69:12 press 27:7 51:7 51:10 58:2 pretty 25:6 53:9 66:8,9 prevention 44:6 previously 52:2 **print** 33:6 prints 32:23 33:4,5,7,7 36:9 40:12 **prior** 13:11 prisoner 29:11 29:12,15 **private** 54:15 probable 26:9 **probably** 11:2 38:18 41:10,14 58:24 61:6 problem 16:11,14 16:16,16 22:2 67:7

problems 65:11 66:17 procedures 16:25 proceeding 16:8 proceeds 30:7 process 4:10 10:22 12:15 15:2 17:19 18:20 19:19,25 20:4 22:19,20 25:22 27:8,17 28:3 30:6,8,17 30:22 34:23 40:14,24 45:5 46:13 56:24 59:22 63:21 processed 28:4 29:15 32:22 33:1,15 41:23 42:20 processes 34:8 processing 29:11 29:12,15 36:20 43:1 **produce** 37:25 programs 44:5 65:25 **Project** 37:18 promote 64:7 promotion 62:21 promotions 62:8 62:11 **proper** 14:18 17:2 54:20,20 63:24 67:1,3 properly 5:23 6:19 49:17 64:14 **property** 30:24 30:25 32:17 33:12,19,22 **proposed** 10:21 proprietary 16:19 prosecutor's 28:2,7 prostitution 29:18 30:21 44:15,23 protecting 10:3 protection 10:6 protective 28:14

proven 19:5 provide 35:15,18 providing 7:12 **public** 1:14 5:15 10:3 13:19 39:19 40:2 59:2 63:2,8,20 63:25,25 67:20 68:3 73:5,18 public's 25:11 publicly 69:9 **pulled** 49:3,7,9 **pun** 13:21 purged 35:25 **purpose** 52:18 61:9 pursuant 9:22 pursue 31:14 **purview** 45:17 **push-off** 30:18 **put** 24:19 37:13 52:22 54:17 58:8 66:12 **puts** 19:17 **putting** 20:23 Q quarter 26:6 quarterback 34:4 question 12:22 13:22 14:6 15:21 20:2 21:14 22:14 40:3 41:13,21 42:20 48:9 58:6 62:9 63:12 questions 16:4 24:21 25:5 38:25 39:12 41:6 46:5 48:6 55:7,10 quick 20:1 39:4 39:12 41:6,13 41:21 50:12 58:5 quickly 19:22 26:13 38:18,23 39:6 50:12 Quinn 7:14 quite 14:25 42:10

R **R**2:8 44:20 radio 68:5 **raid** 29:7 raiding 29:8 **raise** 46:24 **range** 10:5 68:21 **rank** 6:15 **ranks** 6:12 **rape** 27:24 41:23 41:23 42:2 **rapist** 27:21 **rare** 37:5 **reach** 47:12 55:7 55:10 reaching 47:1670:23 reaction 10:7 **read** 7:22 11:8 14:1 24:10 42:22 43:1,7 53:16 70:23 **readily** 9:13 54:21 **reading** 17:25 **ready** 24:8,11,12 24:13 45:11 47:14 **real** 41:6 47:23 50:12,16 really 20:20 21:2 38:15 42:18 45:15 50:7 51:21 61:5 65:24 **realms** 11:2 realtime 37:21 reason 9:11 reasonable 9:24 10:2 **reasons** 36:22 47:7 **recall** 60:21 **receive** 9:18 17:18 **received** 10:19 13:6 50:5 recognition 61:17 recommendation



22:3 36:3 recommendations 19:22 **record** 6:18 7:3 13:13,19 21:5 46:20 62:14,18 63:7 recorded 73:7 recording 7:15 **records** 19:16 35:9,10,21 39:12 **recover** 24:4 32:24 38:17 **recovered** 23:25 **recovery** 31:23 38:12 40:11 **reduced** 73:8 reduction 23:8 **refer** 40:15 reference 9:2 17:6 50:6 67:1 referenced 51:24 referencing 11:10 **referred** 36:13 **regard** 12:12 15:17 21:2 regardless 5:13 29:13 regards 12:8 19:10,12,23 20:13 23:13 47:5 48:21,23 62:22 68:3 **Regie** 68:1 Reginald 2:5 4:21 register 35:20 registration 35:19 **regular** 1:12 40:15 44:19 regulating 54:11 **relate** 27:2 **relates** 41:22 48:22 58:19 Relations 64:20 relationship 27:12 71:21 relationships 27:14

relax 58:14,15 58:16 **relaxed** 58:10 **release** 12:8 15:12,17 released 33:23 releasing 15:13 religion 64:8 remark 6:24 64:11 **remarks** 63:17 67:3 **remember** 16:12 51:19 64:22,23 **render** 63:10 **Renee** 48:19 49:7 **report** 9:24 11:3 20:5,11 22:21 22:24 24:6 35:17 60:5 68:19 **reported** 9:16,19 10:20 **REPORTER** 73:5 reporting 7:14 28:14 43:12 51:20 **reports** 28:15 35:15,18 59:18 represent 5:8,10 5:11 23:7,20 REPRESENTING 3:10 **request** 32:21 48:2 requested 9:11 17:9 requests 30:2 33:2 37:23 40:23,25 **required** 19:15 requirement 37:7 requires 54:4 research 17:25 36:15 researching 13:24 **resend** 42:12 residents 20:2 residing 27:13 **respect** 12:15,20 15:2 22:19

63:13 64:1 67:23 respective 49:23 60:18 respond 11:3 14:11,16 25:15 25:17 38:5,7 39:6 responded 14:21 33:1 50:4,19 62**:**14 responds 28:11 **response** 34:1,5 34:7,18,22,22 39:5 responsibilities 69:5 responsibility 16:22 18:18 52:20 responsible 18:22 30:1 33:13,22 36:20 37:12 49:25 54:11 **rest** 49:6 53:19 restaurants 51:13 resulted 71:11 results 9:18 **retested** 42:7,10 **returned** 30:16 **reverse** 29:23 **review** 10:10 20:21 **reviewed** 13:4 **Ricardo** 2:8 4:22 **Richard** 2:3 4:16 **right** 12:8 14:19 19:19 26:10 35:21 36:5 42:6,24 44:9 44:25 55:9,17 61:8,19 67:22 69:24 **rights** 10:4 70:1 70:8,12 **ring** 55:22 **rings** 32:13 **river** 50:23 **robbed** 40:12,16 robberies 23:4

Page 14

robbery 32:1 Robert 7:9 **Rochon** 64:25 66:22 **Rodney** 8:17 24:24 roll 24:10 **rolling** 44:7 **Ronald** 8:20 **room** 7:24 50:17 **rotation** 21:17 49:18,25 round 41:8 **routine** 21:10 **row** 8:4 **RPR** 73:17 **rule** 18:17,17 **rules** 10:10,15 10:17,17,21 13:4,7,9 14:2 17:23 18:1,2,5 18:11,13,13,19 20:19,20 21:10 **run** 37:2 **runners** 51:12 S **Sad** 46:10 **safe** 51:15 52:22 52:22,23 69:25 **safety** 1:14 5:16 52:18 59:2 63:3 **SAK** 28:1 **sale** 30:12 samples 26:21 32:24 Sanders 2:9 5:3 5:4 56:5,7,12 56:19,22 66:5 satisfied 46:7 **Saturday** 57:24 59:10 **saw** 9:3 56:22 69:20 saying 22:8 **scale** 29:9 scene 32:15,17 32:21 33:3 34:13,23,25 40:9 scenes 25:17,21



33:5 34:3,5 38:7 40:24 scheduling 59:23 **schools** 28:14 65:23,24 **Science** 69:17 70:10 scrapping 31:22 scrutiny 35:7 seamless 37:1 **search** 37:24 second 6:19 27:10,23 29:11 35:23 **secondly** 24:20 secretary 63:14 64:15 section 9:17 29:7 32:17 **secure** 34:25 securing 33:13 see 8:3,8 10:6 16:15 22:10 25:8 42:15 47:22 51:2 52:5 56:21 63:13 68:24 **seeds** 22:12 **seeing** 52:25 seen 11:19 70:23 **seize** 30:7,13,19 **seized** 30:22 seizure 30:9 seizures 30:10 **selected** 48:24 sell 35:18 **SEMCAC** 45:24 **send** 31:18 33:6 37:14 40:23 59:12 61:18 62:15 sending 42:9 **Senior** 7:20 **seniors** 58:20 sensitive 12:9 47:24 sensitivity 47:20 **sent** 23:16 31:17 42:21 60:8 61:15 62:13 **SER** 61:16,24

sergeant 7:14 26:14,17 sergeants 32:3 **serious** 70:18,18 71:10,10 servants 63:25 **serve** 31:23 63:25 service 5:13 32:15 35:11,15 39:11 services 7:12 8:7 28:15 32:17 33:3 59:8 **set** 27:8 55:22 **settle** 68:4 sex 27:19,19 28:4 40:4 41:22 46:2 **shadow** 19:17 **share** 5:15 20:24 20:25 64:4,10 64:11 **shared** 9:25 50:9 sharing 10:1 17:20 48:6 **Shelby** 2:3 4:16 4:17 41:20 shining 19:2 shipped 42:2 shooting 23:11 31:25 shootings 23:4,9 38:6 **shops** 32:13 **shot** 23:10 shoulders 23:19 **show** 49:18 59:14 showing 5:17 61:9 **shows** 49:10 **shut** 45:11 shutting 45:2 **shuttle** 58:24 siblings 26:22 **sic** 12:16 side 31:17 52:19 52:19 57:12,15 **signs** 59:3 **similar** 16:13 **simple** 53:3

Sims 8:6 16:2 **single** 26:11 sir 7:4,7 11:7 11:11,15 12:19 12:20 15:4 16:6 17:6 18:8 22:5 43:17,20 44:10 56:6,11 57:20 59:7 60:1 61:12,13 69:14,15 71:13 71:16 **sit** 68:18 71:4 sitting 7:25 34:12 42:17 situation 19:16 27:24 40:11 58:1 **six** 9:2,4 10:14 12:22,24 25:23 32:3 **slash** 11:13,13 **slight** 23:12 **slow** 45:5 **slower** 45:7 **small** 42:5 smaller 31:2,3 **Smith** 67:9,9,25 snatched 39:9 **sold** 46:2 solidified 55:19 somebody 30:9 31:16 37:5 47:4 someone's 55:2 somewhat 15:1 **soon** 9:21 **sooner** 48:18 **sorry** 15:23 26:19 46:19,23 49:6 55:11 56:21 Southeastern 45:24 southwest 39:14 62:2 **space** 36:6 47:10 **speak** 47:14 48:1 58:14 60:7 61:16 65:1 speaking 67:14 71:2

special 8:21 24:24 27:10 specialty 38:16 specific 10:13 21:23 56:17 63:13 specifically 56:15 62:22 **speed** 13:23 **spite** 20:17 spitting 22:11 **spoke** 65:5 sponsor 62:1 squad 25:24 26:4 27:20,23,23,25 28:1,25 squads 25:23 26:4 27:20 **stadiums** 52:10 **staff** 7:1,8,18 8:1 24:17 32:18 39:4 48:14 60:17,19 **stand** 8:7 standardized 55:14 **standby** 34:10 standing 13:18 39:8 59:17 **stands** 38:11 **start** 4:10,14 20:11 28:8 44:2 59:12 started 28:2 34:25 64:23 starting 37:19 stat 22:21 **state** 26:18 31:17,20 36:2 42:23 73:1 **stated** 13:12,19 17:7 22:19 42:21 71:2 statement 6:23 7:22 9:2 10:25 11:10,23 16:9 18:14 statements 21:3 **states** 14:1 stations 29:20 **stay** 66:7 **steer** 67:2



stenographic	17:18 23:1
73:11	36:10 38:1
<pre>stenographically 73:8</pre>	44:5,23 4
step 24:18	47:24 49:1 52:21 53:2
stepped 52:4,8	55:6,9 58
stepping 65:11	61:24 64:2
steps 46:12	65:18 71:2
Stile 62:9	surface 54:3
stings 29:23	<pre>surface 54:3 surprised 53</pre>
stint 16:12	surrounding
<pre>stipulation 6:18</pre>	10:14
stolen 40:6,10	surveillanc
57:10,10	26:7,7
stop 25:5 55:12	surviving 6
stopper 27:6	suspect 24:7 27:24
<pre>stoppers 27:5 storing 33:13</pre>	suspects 26:
straights 40:15	37:17
streamline 34:8	suspend 12:2
street 27:21	12:25 13:2
29:21 35:13	13:24 14:2
44:23	suspended 9
streets 52:23	9:20 22:4
strong 10:17	suspending
<pre>stronger 10:16</pre>	suspension (
students 28:17	9:12 14:22
stuff 30:15	suspicious 2
52:11 70:21 substance 14:18	SVU 25:3 28: sworn 32:18
successful 26:10	41:10
29:2	system 49:22
suggestions	systems 38:1
63:10	-
<pre>suggests 26:11</pre>	T
suicides 25:18	take 14:18
suit 19:18	27:8 32:24
summary 22:21	36:24 39:2 64:16 68:2
<pre>summer 17:16 49:4,10</pre>	taken 35:24
summit 54:17	40:13,16
58:6,21	takes 19:17
support 5:22	talk 25:14
14:22 47:17	55:12 62:2
68:9 71:25	63:22 71:2
<pre>supported 5:24</pre>	talked 49:2
<pre>supporting 9:12</pre>	64 : 4
<pre>supportive 61:10</pre>	talking 40:8
supposed 16:20	47:19 52:
52:14 55:19	65:18
69:25 sure 7:2 16:17	tamper 41:1
SULE / . 2 10:1/	taping 7:12
	-

17,23 task 8:15 9:9 18 7:6 17 2 :22 13,22 2,5 3 1:20 g ce :13 7 40:23 :8 32:18 22,24 2,16 2 :3,5 14:15 9:9 2 29:1 :19 69:17 41:7 35:12 1 17 16:16 4 23 14 40:5 73:11 34:2 34:6 23 19 ,4 8 42:7 7

25:1,25 26:2 31:1,2,4,8,11 31:11,13,15 32:11 45:22,23 45:25 60:8,12 **teacher** 28:15 team 11:21 18:18 19:7 23:14 26:7 28:6 31:10,12,25 32:2 34:1,22 34:22 38:12,12 38:15 39:10 teams 24:3 34:5 34:7,11,18,18 technicians technology 42:8 **techs** 33:5 41:2 telephone 50:5 **tell**11:20,24 15:18 21:25 40:25 62:17,20 65:2 68:20 **Temple** 70:10 Temple-America temporarily temporary 13:24 tend 54:3 61:1 Terminated 14:5 terms 5:9 6:24 12:15 13:23,23 14:19,23 16:11 16:22 17:7 22:21 43:8 46:9,13,15,22 47:21 50:8 51:22 57:25 58:3 59:20 64:6,11 70:17 Terrorism 31:11 **test** 42:19 tested 42:4,5,6 **thank** 4:13 5:13 5:16 6:17 7:4 7:7,21 8:23,25 11:15 12:13

16:3 19:24 20:14 21:12 22:5,17 39:2 41:3,5,19 42:18 44:9 48:5,12,14,16 51:14 53:13 55:21 56:4 57:20 59:6 60:1,6 61:12 61:22 62:5,25 64:17 65:17,19 66:3 67:8,25 68:15 69:13,14 70:16,22 71:13 71:15,16,23 72:4 thanks 42:14 51:18 57:20 **theft** 31:22 32:10,12,13 **thing** 18:10 57:13 things 21:7 44:2 44:3 47:18 49:16 52:10 54:25 57:13 60:18,20 62:11 68:7,11,21 69:6 think 11:1 14:22 17:9 19:5,11 26:19 39:20 40:18 42:21 43:1 59:11 60:7,8,14 61:21 63:10,16 63:19,23 68:6 70:18 third 1:15 28:10 29:17 **thorough** 25:13 thoroughfare 50:23 **thought** 58:6 thousand 54:1 threats 32:6 three 23:24 42:1 48:11 60:13 69:24 throwing 23:19 Thursday 1:13

63:2 ticketing 52:4,9 53:6 **tickets** 53:10 tightening 21:10 tightest 18:3 till 9:25 time 6:23 7:21 8:1 11:1,2 13:8,17 14:16 14:25 15:16 17:2 23:10 27:22 33:18 37:3,23 38:23 43:22 47:22,22 47:24 51:2,11 53:2 54:1 55:17 59:18 60:5 65:1,5 71:4 timeframe 59:23 59:25 timely 41:23 times 42:1,16 47:2 53:1 54:23 55:22 69:24 tips 27:8,9 today 7:9,19 17:23 21:16,17 23:24 48:22 50:3 65:2 68:21 69:19,21 toe 13:20,20 **told** 9:7 13:16 50:6 52:12 64:25 65:8 66:20 **tolerated** 49:15 tonight 7:12,14 tool 38:22 **topless** 29:21 **touch** 44:6 tough 24:20 tow 13:4,7,9,15 14:1 21:15,16 21:21,23 22:1 22:9 48:19 49:18,21 51:3 56:8,14,14 57:3,4 69:23 towed 50:12 54:9

tower 49:19 50:1 towers 13:3,21 13:24 17:11 49:23,25 51:22 towing 9:2,6 10:10,21,22 11:19 13:14,16 14:2,12,15,20 16:12 17:19 19:10 48:22 49:3,3,5,9,11 51:7,8 52:1,4 52:9,21 53:11 56:24 59:20 69:22,23 town 52:19 tows 17:9,17 48:23 49:19 53:18,20 56:18 57:6 **track** 35:4 38:4 **trade** 46:2 traditional 28:13 trafficking 45:19 46:1 **trained** 28:22 38:16 training 32:9 47:20 transcript 73:10 transcription 73:9 transparency 10:3 transparent 18:21 19:6 transpired 14:14 **travel** 61:7 traveling 50:22 treatment 52:17 **troubled** 11:21 true 73:10 truly 39:6 55:7 **trust** 25:11 **try** 26:20 33:7 62:13 trying 22:14 37:9 51:21 59:14 60:15,22 Tuesday 9:3 13:10

turnaround 43:2 **turning** 33:22 tutoring 65:25 twice 44:22,22 **two** 7:5 24:18 25:24 32:3 34:18 39:7,12 41:6 44:13 62:8 63:6 68:13 type 28:7 32:10 49:2 63:18 **types** 38:17 typewritten 73:8 **typically** 46:21 47:1,13 typing 29:2 U **U.S** 31:12 32:8 59:10 uncertain 55:13 understand 40:4 49:20 53:8 70:7,12 understanding 47:22 56:11 70:3,19 71:7 underway 9:16 14:25 **unfolds** 16:19 22:16 Unfortunately 19:16 unidentified 26:22 **uniform** 54:21 uniformed 55:20 **unique** 51:6 **unit**8:22 24:25 25:14 26:10,14 27:10,12,17,20 28:10,17 29:11 29:15 30:6 31:21,23 32:2 32:6 33:4 34:12 37:11,24 44:19 48:10 54:10 units 10:7 25:9 34:10 unity 63:22

Page 17

unknown 27:20 **unnatural** 25:18 **update** 50:8 **upset** 64:24 67:15 **upwards** 53:1,25 **use** 36:6 38:20 usual 14:7,7 **usually** 31:5 42:1 44:21 53:11 utilize 21:18 26:7 utilizing 21:15 v vacant 23:25 vain 63:12 Vann 2:4 4:11,14 4:18,18 5:20 16:5,7 44:11 45:4,13,18 46:3 various 31:7 **vary** 57:4 varying 57:3 61:5 **vehicle** 32:13 vehicles 30:20 30:21 40:11 50:17,21 51:1 52:22 54:9 verified 9:9 **vest** 54:24 **vice** 4:23 29:17 29:17 44:18,18 45:21 **victim** 20:3 28:1 46:6,9,13,15 69:22 victims 8:22 23:11 24:25 27:1,10 **view**21:2 38:21 70:2 **violate** 18:2,4 **violation** 10:16 18:17 violator 29:6 violators 29:4,6 29:16 30:1,5 44:16 45:21



Page 18

<pre>violence 27:11 27:16,18 43:8 43:9,10,19,23 44:2,6 violent 31:8 visit 55:2 visors 24:15 visual 25:8 38:12 42:16 visualization 42:15 volunteers 63:25</pre>
VOLUNCEELS 00:20
W
W-W-W11:12 wait 9:25 15:11 waiting 23:16 34:13 walk 46:12 want 5:7 6:13
7:25 8:25 11:1 12:14 14:16 16:7,17,21 18:10 19:11 22:22 23:21 39:3 40:1 42:18 47:24 48:25 49:16 50:17 52:2 55:1,3,6,9
56:16 57:21 58:18,22 60:9 61:16 62:23 63:8,9,19 64:4 64:10,10,13 65:8 67:17 68:19 69:7,8
70:8 wanted 13:16
20:16 25:8 31:14,20 36:4 36:7 62:3
<pre>wants 25:5 30:9 35:17 47:5 warrant 26:9 36:24 44:24 warrants 23:15 23:17 28:8 29:2 31:24,25 32:1 35:5</pre>
Washington 12:7 Washtenaw 73:3

73:19 wasn't 40:16,16 42:10 62:14 67:16 69:18 wave 54:25 way 7:23 20:8 23:1 38:21 49:22 61:1 63:24
<pre>ways 20:8 we'll 36:14 59:3 60:3 61:7,8 we're 4:14 16:15 16:19,20 17:20 19:2 20:20,21 20:23,24 21:8 22:8,10 23:16 23:18,21 24:5 24:7 28:5 30:13 31:2 37:2,19 42:8</pre>
45:1,10 47:6 47:24 55:24 56:2 58:22 60:22 64:14 we've 8:4 11:19 11:22 12:5 13:12 26:12 31:17 34:9,20 35:24 37:4 54:17 website 10:23
<pre>website 10:23 11:9 17:13,21 17:23 39:23,25 Wednesday 9:10 week 32:19 42:1 43:12,19 44:6 44:22,22 62:7 67:12 weekend 50:9 58:7 weekly 4:8</pre>
<pre>weeks 22:16 37:20 weigh 11:1 12:14 welcome 4:7 12:21 71:3 went 17:16 62:22 69:19,22 weren't 54:8 65:18 west 52:19</pre>

White 3:11 7:25
8:3,24 11:3,16
11:17 12:14 15:10,15,23
16:1 18:16 19:25 20:2,7
19:25 20:2,7
24:13,15 48:17
21:20 22:10,23 24:13,15 48:17 56:23 62:15,19 wide 29:13 34:3 44:19 61:4
wide 29:13 34:3
68 : 21
Williams 8:9,9
Willie 2:6 4:9 Wilson 8:20,20
24:22,22
Winship 68:25 wiser 55:4
witness 43:21
45:7 50:18
63:18 witnessed 52:7
women 23:2 51:14
wondering 58:9
Woodward 44:15 44:20
word14:5 26:20
work 19:16 23:1
23:12,15 26:2 27:1 28:3,25
23:12,15 26:2 27:1 28:3,25
23:12,15 26:2 27:1 28:3,25
23:12,15 26:2 27:1 28:3,25 29:8,9,9 32:4 32:11,19 33:1 34:19 37:23 40:23,23 46:1
23:12,15 26:2 27:1 28:3,25 29:8,9,9 32:4 32:11,19 33:1 34:19 37:23 40:23,23 46:1
23:12,15 26:2 27:1 28:3,25 29:8,9,9 32:4 32:11,19 33:1 34:19 37:23 40:23,23 46:1 57:25 58:20 61:1 62:2 65:7 65:14,14,15,16
23:12,15 26:2 27:1 28:3,25 29:8,9,9 32:4 32:11,19 33:1 34:19 37:23 40:23,23 46:1 57:25 58:20 61:1 62:2 65:7 65:14,14,15,16 66:10 69:6
23:12,15 26:2 27:1 28:3,25 29:8,9,9 32:4 32:11,19 33:1 34:19 37:23 40:23,23 46:1 57:25 58:20 61:1 62:2 65:7 65:14,14,15,16 66:10 69:6
23:12,15 26:2 27:1 28:3,25 29:8,9,9 32:4 32:11,19 33:1 34:19 37:23 40:23,23 46:1 57:25 58:20 61:1 62:2 65:7 65:14,14,15,16 66:10 69:6 working 7:10 23:2,21 24:2,4 28:7 34:10
23:12,15 26:2 27:1 28:3,25 29:8,9,9 32:4 32:11,19 33:1 34:19 37:23 40:23,23 46:1 57:25 58:20 61:1 62:2 65:7 65:14,14,15,16 66:10 69:6 working 7:10 23:2,21 24:2,4 28:7 34:10 42:9 44:5 45:1
23:12,15 26:2 27:1 28:3,25 29:8,9,9 32:4 32:11,19 33:1 34:19 37:23 40:23,23 46:1 57:25 58:20 61:1 62:2 65:7 65:14,14,15,16 66:10 69:6 working 7:10 23:2,21 24:2,4 28:7 34:10 42:9 44:5 45:1 46:10 47:9 59:23
23:12,15 26:2 27:1 28:3,25 29:8,9,9 32:4 32:11,19 33:1 34:19 37:23 40:23,23 46:1 57:25 58:20 61:1 62:2 65:7 65:14,14,15,16 66:10 69:6 working 7:10 23:2,21 24:2,4 28:7 34:10 42:9 44:5 45:1 46:10 47:9 59:23 works 26:15,20
23:12,15 26:2 27:1 28:3,25 29:8,9,9 32:4 32:11,19 33:1 34:19 37:23 40:23,23 46:1 57:25 58:20 61:1 62:2 65:7 65:14,14,15,16 66:10 69:6 working 7:10 23:2,21 24:2,4 28:7 34:10 42:9 44:5 45:1 46:10 47:9 59:23 works 26:15,20 26:21 35:3
23:12,15 26:2 27:1 28:3,25 29:8,9,9 32:4 32:11,19 33:1 34:19 37:23 40:23,23 46:1 57:25 58:20 61:1 62:2 65:7 65:14,14,15,16 66:10 69:6 working 7:10 23:2,21 24:2,4 28:7 34:10 42:9 44:5 45:1 46:10 47:9 59:23 works 26:15,20 26:21 35:3 workup 37:22 world 18:3,12
23:12,15 26:2 27:1 28:3,25 29:8,9,9 32:4 32:11,19 33:1 34:19 37:23 40:23,23 46:1 57:25 58:20 61:1 62:2 65:7 65:14,14,15,16 66:10 69:6 working 7:10 23:2,21 24:2,4 28:7 34:10 42:9 44:5 45:1 46:10 47:9 59:23 works 26:15,20 26:21 35:3 workup 37:22 world 18:3,12 50:16
23:12,15 26:2 27:1 28:3,25 29:8,9,9 32:4 32:11,19 33:1 34:19 37:23 40:23,23 46:1 57:25 58:20 61:1 62:2 65:7 65:14,14,15,16 66:10 69:6 working 7:10 23:2,21 24:2,4 28:7 34:10 42:9 44:5 45:1 46:10 47:9 59:23 works 26:15,20 26:21 35:3 workup 37:22 world 18:3,12 50:16 worldwide 31:14 wouldn't 13:17
23:12,15 26:2 27:1 28:3,25 29:8,9,9 32:4 32:11,19 33:1 34:19 37:23 40:23,23 46:1 57:25 58:20 61:1 62:2 65:7 65:14,14,15,16 66:10 69:6 working 7:10 23:2,21 24:2,4 28:7 34:10 42:9 44:5 45:1 46:10 47:9 59:23 works 26:15,20 26:21 35:3 workup 37:22 world 18:3,12 50:16 worldwide 31:14

wraps write wrongs	53:10
	x
	••
	Y
41:9 year2 27:1 33:1	2:7 26:19 ,21 44:4 3:10,10,24 7 32:25 4 58:2
years 35:6 38:1	0 62:3 28:5 34:7 ,25 36:3 4 42:10 9 52:3,7,7
Yep 71 York 3 Young	:22 1:18 60:21
	Z
	0
	1
12:3 1,500 1023: 39:1	4,5,5
10:00	0 27:17 59:12 9:8 57:4
0.3:4	
11 5:1	5 59:12 n 42·3
11 5:1 11,57 11th 6 12th 4 1301 1	0 42:3 4:21 65:5 4:21 57:4 :15
11 5:1 11,57 11th 6 12th 4 1301 1 13th 6	0 42:3 4:21 65:5 4:21 57:4 :15 :2 20 73:20 12
11 5:1 11,57 11th 6 12th 4 1301 1 13th 6 15 28: 16 28: 1st 55	0 42:3 4:21 65:5 4:21 57:4 :15 :2 20 73:20 12

201:13 4:2

17:19 52:7 58:24

HANSON RENAISSANCE COURT REPORTERS & VIDEO A13-567-8100

2010 13:10	7
2015 28:23	
2016 1:13 4:2	72:8 4:23 32:19
6:3	34:19 44:15,20
2021 73:20	57:5
21st 13:10	72 47:14
24 32:19	7800 40:13
24/7 34:6	7th 8:9 37:18
25 54:8	49:24 63:4
25 th 61:21	
27th 63:2	8
29th 60:13 65:23	8 28:24 34:19
66:2	80 41:10
	87 23:9,9,11
2nd 64:19 65:4	
3	9
3 2:5 4:21 57:4	9 57 : 11
3 2:5 4:21 57:4 63:2 71:1	9th 57:5,5,8,17
3 ,774 33:1	
-	
3:00 1:13 4:3	
30 55:3,5	
300 54:1	
30th 60:13	
31st 55:18 60:13	
320 41:10	
3rd 35:11,14	
	1
4	
4 2:6 4:10 23:3	
4 2:6 4:10 23:3 23:13	
4 2:6 4:10 23:3 23:13 4:36 72:6	
4 2:6 4:10 23:3 23:13 4:36 72:6 40 36:3	
4 2:6 4:10 23:3 23:13 4:36 72:6 40 36:3 400 41:9 54:1	
4 2:6 4:10 23:3 23:13 4:36 72:6 40 36:3 400 41:9 54:1 44 42:22 43:1,4	
42:64:1023:3 23:13 4:3672:6 4036:3 40041:954:1 4442:2243:1,4 450,00033:15	
<pre>4 2:6 4:10 23:3 23:13 4:36 72:6 40 36:3 400 41:9 54:1 44 42:22 43:1,4 450,000 33:15 48 37:6 42:1,21</pre>	
<pre>4 2:6 4:10 23:3 23:13 4:36 72:6 40 36:3 400 41:9 54:1 44 42:22 43:1,4 450,000 33:15 48 37:6 42:1,21 47:13</pre>	
<pre>4 2:6 4:10 23:3 23:13 4:36 72:6 40 36:3 400 41:9 54:1 44 42:22 43:1,4 450,000 33:15 48 37:6 42:1,21 47:13 48226 1:16</pre>	
<pre>4 2:6 4:10 23:3 23:13 4:36 72:6 40 36:3 400 41:9 54:1 44 42:22 43:1,4 450,000 33:15 48 37:6 42:1,21 47:13</pre>	
<pre>4 2:6 4:10 23:3 23:13 4:36 72:6 40 36:3 400 41:9 54:1 44 42:22 43:1,4 450,000 33:15 48 37:6 42:1,21 47:13 48226 1:16</pre>	
4 2:6 4:10 23:3 23:13 4:3672:6 40 36:3 400 41:9 54:1 44 42:22 43:1,4 450,000 33:15 48 37:6 42:1,21 47:13 482261:16 4th 35:12,13	
4 2:6 4:10 23:3 23:13 4:3672:6 40 36:3 400 41:9 54:1 44 42:22 43:1,4 450,000 33:15 48 37:6 42:1,21 47:13 482261:16 4th 35:12,13 5 55:2,5	
4 2:6 4:10 23:3 23:13 4:3672:6 40 36:3 400 41:9 54:1 44 42:22 43:1,4 450,000 33:15 48 37:6 42:1,21 47:13 482261:16 4th 35:12,13	
4 2:6 4:10 23:3 23:13 4:3672:6 40 36:3 400 41:9 54:1 44 42:22 43:1,4 450,000 33:15 48 37:6 42:1,21 47:13 482261:16 4th 35:12,13 5 55:2,5 500,000 53:1	
4 2:6 4:10 23:3 23:13 4:3672:6 40 36:3 400 41:9 54:1 44 42:22 43:1,4 450,000 33:15 48 37:6 42:1,21 47:13 482261:16 4th 35:12,13 5 55:2,5 500,000 53:1 55 35:25 596-2447 20:13	
4 2:6 4:10 23:3 23:13 4:3672:6 40 36:3 400 41:9 54:1 44 42:22 43:1,4 450,000 33:15 48 37:6 42:1,21 47:13 48226 1:16 4th 35:12,13 5 55:2,5 500,000 53:1 55 35:25	
4 2:6 4:10 23:3 23:13 4:3672:6 40 36:3 400 41:9 54:1 44 42:22 43:1,4 450,000 33:15 48 37:6 42:1,21 47:13 482261:16 4th 35:12,13 5555:2,5 500,000 53:1 55 35:25 596-2447 20:13 5K 57:24	
4 2:6 4:10 23:3 23:13 4:3672:6 40 36:3 400 41:9 54:1 44 42:22 43:1,4 450,000 33:15 48 37:6 42:1,21 47:13 482261:16 4th 35:12,13 5555:2,5 500,000 53:1 55 35:25 596-2447 20:13 5K 57:24	
4 2:6 4:10 23:3 23:13 4:3672:6 40 36:3 400 41:9 54:1 44 42:22 43:1,4 450,000 33:15 48 37:6 42:1,21 47:13 482261:16 4th 35:12,13 555:2,5 500,000 53:1 55 35:25 596-2447 20:13 5K 57:24 5th 57:5	
4 2:6 4:10 23:3 23:13 4:3672:6 40 36:3 400 41:9 54:1 44 42:22 43:1,4 450,000 33:15 48 37:6 42:1,21 47:13 48226 1:16 4th 35:12,13 5555:2,5 500,000 53:1 55 35:25 596-2447 20:13 5K 57:24 5th 57:5 6	
4 2:6 4:10 23:3 23:13 4:3672:6 40 36:3 400 41:9 54:1 44 42:22 43:1,4 450,000 33:15 48 37:6 42:1,21 47:13 48226 1:16 4th 35:12,13 55 55:2,5 500,000 53:1 55 35:25 596-2447 20:13 5k 57:24 5th 57:5 6 6 6 2:7 44:15	

